AGREEMENT

MILL VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT AND MILL VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND MILL VALLEY TEACHERS ASSOCIATION

July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2017

Approved by the Governing Board: November 12, 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1:	AGREEMENT	1
ARTICLE 2:	RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE 3:	APPLICATION OF STANDARDS	2
ARTICLE 4:	DEFINITIONS	2
ARTICLE 5:	DISTRICT RIGHTS	3
ARTICLE 6:	ASSOCIATION RIGHTS	3
ARTICLE 7:	CONSULTATION	3
ARTICLE 8:	NON-DISCRIMINATION	4
ARTICLE 9:	DUES DEDUCTIONS	4
ARTICLE 10:	HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT	5
ARTICLE 11:	SAFETY CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT	9
ARTICLE 12:	TRANSFERS	11
ARTICLE 13:	FAILURE TO PERFORM DUTIES	13
ARTICLE 14:	PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS	14
ARTICLE 15:	EVALUATIONS	15
ARTICLE 16:	PEER ASSISTANCE AND REVIEW (PAR)	29
ARTICLE 17:	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	34
ARTICLE 18:	CLASS SIZE	38
ARTICLE 19:	LEAVES	39
ARTICLE 20:	LAYOFFS	51
ARTICLE 21:	COMPENSATION	52
ARTICLE 22:	RETIREMENT	60
ARTICLE 23:	EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE FOR 2009-2010	65
ARTICLE 24:	RESIGNATIONS	66

ARTICLE 25: COMPLAINTS	6
ARTICLE 26: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 68	8
APPENDIX A: TEACHER SALARY SCHEDULE	9
APPENDIX AI: TEACHER SALARY SCHEDULE	0
APPENDIX B: MIDDLE SCHOOL COUNSELOR SALARY SCHEDULE	1
APPENDIX BI: MIDDLE SCHOOL COUNSELOR SALARY SCHEDULE	2
APPENDIX C: CERTIFICATED STIPENDS	3
APPENDIX D: WORK CALENDAR	4
APPENDIX E: EVALUATION FORMS	5
APPENDIX F: PROTOCOL FOR PARENT INTERACTION WITH CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL	6
MOU	9

ARTICLE 1: AGREEMENT

- 1.1 These articles and provisions constitute a binding agreement ("Agreement") by and between the Governing Board of the Mill Valley School District ("Board") and the Mill Valley Teachers Association/California Teachers Association/National Education Association ("Association"), an employee organization.
- 1.2 This Agreement is entered into pursuant to Chapter 10.7, Sections 3540-3549 of the Government Code ("Act").
- 1.3 If any provision of this Agreement is ruled invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, then such provision shall not be in effect, but all other provisions and applications shall continue in full force and effect. Upon request, the parties shall meet within 10 days to re-negotiate the provision or provisions affected.
- 1.4 The parties shall reopen negotiations when new statutes or regulations become law that affects provisions in this Agreement.
- 1.5 The appendices and provisions of law incorporated by specific reference into this Agreement are made a part of this Agreement as much as if they had been set forth in this Agreement.
- 1.6 Within 30 days of ratification of the Agreement by both parties, the Board shall have sufficient copies prepared and delivered to the Association for distribution to the teachers in the District.
- 1.7 This Agreement shall be in effect from July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2013.
- 1.8 Local Option Process
 - 1.8.1 Any school (or schools), department, individual, or group of individuals within the bargaining unit may request a waiver from provisions of this contract subject to the following conditions:
 - 1.8.1.1 Proposals for waiver shall first be discussed with the Association and District in a consult session.
 - 1.8.1.2 If the waiver will affect an entire school, it must be approved by a two thirds (2/3) vote of the bargaining unit members at that school. If the waiver will affect only a portion of the school program, it must be approved by a majority vote of the bargaining unit members at that school.

- 1.8.1.3 In addition to the approval in subsection 1.8.1.2 above, both the Association and the Board must approve any waiver before it can become effective.
- 1.8.1.4 All waivers granted under the provisions of the Local Option Process shall remain in effect only for the school year in which they are initiated, but they can be renewed on a yearto-year basis using the same procedure as stated in subsections 1.8.1.2 and 1.8.1.3 above.
- 1.8.1.5 No member of the bargaining unit may use the grievance procedure of this Agreement to challenge the granting of such a waiver.

ARTICLE 2: RECOGNITION

- 2.1 The District recognizes the Association as the exclusive representative for employees in the certificated unit, which is composed of the following job classifications: classroom teacher, counselor, Special day class teacher, Special resource teacher, speech and language specialist, foreign language teacher, music teacher, art teacher, librarian, school nurse.
- 2.2 This Agreement shall apply only to unit members in the above described representational unit.

ARTICLE 3: APPLICATION OF STANDARDS

- 3.1 This Agreement shall supersede any rules, regulations, practices, or policies of the Board that are, or may in the future be, contrary to or inconsistent with its terms.
- 3.2 The provisions of this Agreement shall not be interpreted or applied in a manner which is arbitrary, capricious, or discriminatory. Rules that are designed to implement this Agreement shall be uniform in application and effect.

ARTICLE 4: DEFINITIONS

4.1 "Teacher" refers to any employee who is included in the appropriate Unit as defined in Article 2 and therefore covered by the terms and provisions of the Agreement.

ARTICLE 5: DISTRICT RIGHTS

5.1 It is specifically understood and agreed by the parties that all matters not specifically and directly covered by this Agreement remain the sole and exclusive jurisdiction of the District and, unless restricted by the provisions of the California Education Code, the District may act on such matters as determined by the Governing Board in its sole and exclusive discretion.

ARTICLE 6: ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

- 6.1 The Association shall have the right to put notices of activities and matters of Association concern on Association bulletin boards, at least one of which shall be located in each school building in areas frequented by teachers. The Association may use the District mail service and teacher mail boxes for communications to teachers. The Association may use District facilities for local Association meetings at reasonable times provided the facilities are not otherwise needed. District equipment may be used by the Association for local Association business provided the equipment is not otherwise in use and provided the Association pays the cost of supplies utilized.
- 6.2 The Association shall be provided with copies of District records necessary to perform its representational duties.
- 6.3 The Association president or his/her designee shall be provided released time at no loss of salary or other benefits for the duration of the Agreement upon prior notice to the Superintendent. The Association shall reimburse the District for costs of substitutes.

ARTICLE 7: CONSULTATION

- 7.1 The Association has the right to consult, upon request of either party, on educational objectives, the content of courses and curriculum, the selection of textbooks, and Board actions, or changes in written Board policies and/or written Administrative Rules and Regulations that affect employees covered by the terms of this Agreement.
- 7.2 The Superintendent or designee shall meet monthly with the Association president or designee to discuss matters of mutual concern including the above subjects.

ARTICLE 8: NON-DISCRIMINATION

- 8.1 The Governing Board shall not illegally discriminate against any unit member on the basis of race, color, creed, age, sex, national origin, political affiliation, domicile, marital status, sexual orientation, physical handicap, membership in an employee organization, or participation in the activities of an employee organization.
- 8.2 Application forms and oral interview procedures shall not refer to membership in or preferences for employee organizations.

ARTICLE 9: DUES DEDUCTIONS

- 9.1 Any unit member who is a member of the Association, or who has applied for membership, may sign and deliver to the District an authorization for deduction of unified membership dues in the Association. Deductions other than unified dues, shall be deducted upon written authorization for a stated period. Such authorization shall continue for unified membership dues in effect from year to year unless revoked in writing. Pursuant to such authorization, the District shall deduct one-tenth (1/10th) of such dues from the regular salary check of the unit member each month for 10 months. Deductions for unit members who sign such authorization after the commencement of the school year shall be appropriately prorated to complete payments by the end of the school year.
- 9.2 With respect to all sums deducted by the District pursuant to authorization of the unit member, for unified membership dues, the District agrees to promptly remit such moneys to the Association, accompanied by an alphabetical list of unit members. The Association shall have the right to a listing of unit members for whom deductions are made.
- 9.3 Any unit member who is not a member of the Association or who does not make application for membership within 30 days from date of commencement of assigned duties, shall become a member of the Association or pay to the Association a fee in an amount equal to unified membership dues, payable to the Association; provided, however, that the unit member may authorize payroll deduction for such fee in the same manner as provided in Section 1 of this Article. In the event that any unit member, whether or not a member of the Association treasurer or authorize payment through payroll deduction, the District shall begin automatic payroll deductions as provided in Education Code Section 45061 and in the same manner as set forth in Section 9.1 of this Article. Agency fee payees will have the opportunity to seek a percentage rebate as allowed by law.

- 9.4 Any unit member who is a member of a religious body whose traditional tenets or teachings include objections to joining or financially supporting employee organizations shall not be required to join, or maintain membership in, or financially support the Mill Valley Teachers Association as a condition of employment; except that such unit member shall pay, in lieu of unified membership dues, sums equal to such dues to a non-religious, non-labor, charitable organization exempt from taxation under Sections 501(c)(3) of Title 26 of the Internal Revenue Code. Such payment shall be made in the same manner as unified membership dues.
- 9.5 A written statement of objection from the unit member, along with verifiable evidence of membership in a religious body whose traditional tenets or teachings object to joining or financially supporting employee organizations, pursuant to Section 9.4 above, shall be made on an annual basis to the District as a condition of continued exemption from the provisions of Sections 9.1 and 9.2.
- 9.6 <u>Legal Challenge To Agency Fee</u>
 - 9.6.1 The Association agrees to pay to the District all reasonable legal fees and legal costs incurred in defending against any court action and/or administrative action before the Public Employment Relations Board challenging the legality or constitutionality of the agency fee provisions of this Agreement or their implementation.
 - 9.6.2 The Association shall have the exclusive right to decide and determine whether any such action or proceeding referred to in subsection 9.6.1 above shall or shall not be compromised, resisted, defended, tried or appealed.

ARTICLE 10: HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT

10.1 Unless other arrangements are made with the site principal for a later arrival or an earlier dismissal, each K-8 full-time teacher shall be present at the school site for seven hours and five minutes each workday. A regular daily teacher work schedule shall be developed for each site by the school principal.

In addition, teachers shall attend faculty meetings, work on curriculum development projects, and participate in parent conferences.

- 10.2 Every teacher shall be entitled to one duty-free lunch period of not less than 30 minutes.
 - 10.2.1 Unit members shall not be required to supervise students during the students' lunch period.

- 10.2.2 Kindergarten teachers participating in an extended day will be provided a lunch period comparable to the average period at the school site.
- 10.3 Teachers shall have duty-free recess breaks daily at the same time students have recess breaks, except that teachers may be assigned duty for student supervision during recess provided such duties are assigned on an equitable basis throughout the faculty.

10.4 Planning And Preparation Periods

- 10.4.1 Planning and preparation time is part of the contracted work day and will occur on campus. It will be used for planning, preparation and conferences with students, parents, other teachers, or administrators.
 - 10.4.1.1 First through fifth grade teachers shall receive at least two and one-half hours per week during instructional time for preparation and planning.
 - 10.4.1.2 If scheduled preparation time is canceled because a substitute is unavailable, the teacher will be compensated if the time lost exceeds 3.0 hours annually. This payment will be based on the teacher's per diem, and will be paid at the end of the fiscal year, provided the teacher timely submits the loss of the preparation period to the site administrator on the appropriate District form as verification.
 - 10.4.1.3 In addition to the prep time listed in 10.4.1.1 above, grade 4/5 teachers' preparation time will be enhanced by providing release from classroom instruction while the students are receiving music and library instruction.
 - 10.4.1.4 Teachers of combination classes shall receive an additional five days of pay per year for the additional preparation requirements.
 - 10.4.1.5 Middle School teachers shall receive one planning and preparation period each day during the regular student instructional periods equivalent to one normal class period.
- 10.4.2 Unit members shall not be required to substitute during their preparation period.

- 10.5 The District shall designate minimum days during the year for parent conferences.
- 10.6 Each teacher shall spend such additional time at the school, as in his/her professional judgment, is required to beneficially supplement the regular instructional day. To this end, the teacher shall have access to school facilities for the purpose of conferences, planning, preparation, and individual student remediation, until at least 5:00 p.m. on every school day.
- 10.7 Teachers shall participate in traditional duties assigned by the principal such as "Back-to-School Night," "Open House," graduation, parent meetings, IEP meetings, and extra-curricular activities in accordance with past practices. The school day for each Spring Open House shall be scheduled as a minimum school day.
- 10.8 During the hours of employment, unit members shall perform those duties related to their teaching assignments as designated by the principal.
- 10.9 <u>Instructional Year</u>
 - 10.9.1 The instructional year shall contain the following minimum number of instructional minutes:

Kindergarten	43,200 minutes of instruction
Grades 1-3	50,400 minutes of instruction
Grades 4-8	54,000 minutes of instruction

The Governing Board shall make the final decision as to staffing needs and the precise allocation of instructional minutes during the school day.

10.10 The frequency and length of general staff meetings shall be determined through consultation of certificated staff and principal.

Middle School department meetings shall be scheduled during the contractual teacher work day.

District wide meetings shall not extend more than one hour beyond the contractual teacher work day.

10.11 Unit members who travel from one school to another on a regular basis shall have the same rights to a planning/preparation period, lunch period, and appropriate breaks as do other unit members.

10.12 Participation On Committees

- 10.12.1 Unit member participation on all District committees shall be on a voluntary basis subject to administrative approval. When committee meetings are held outside the workday, the unit members shall be paid at the hourly contract rate of \$40 per hour (effective January 1, 2014).
- 10.12.2 Unit members who are appointed to School Site Councils pursuant to Education Code Section 51012 shall be granted released time during their workday at no loss of pay or benefits to fulfill the obligations of their appointment.

10.13 <u>Inservice Training</u>

- 10.13.1 All inservice programs shall be mutually determined by administration and staff.
- 10.13.2 All inservice education meetings for unit members shall occur during the normal workday, or teachers will be paid a stipend of \$40 per hour (effective January 1, 2014) per teacher for any inservice meetings held outside of the workday.

10.14 Work Year

- 10.14.1 Unit members shall provide instruction for 180 days per year. New teachers shall render service for a total of 187 days, and returning teachers for a total of 186 days. One of these shall be a student free day immediately following the conclusion of the student instructional year.
- 10.14.2 The work year for Middle School Counselors shall be 15 days longer than the teachers' work year
- 10.14.3 The current school year calendar listing all instructional days, non-instructional days, vacations, and holidays is included as Appendix D.
- 10.14.4 The Superintendent shall meet with the Association to determine the calendar for each school year not later than November 1 of the preceding school year.

10.15 Special Education Positions

Unit members assigned to special education positions shall receive additional compensation equivalent to 7 additional days of work, based on their per diem salary, prorated for less than full time employment. These stipends for

these days are not subject to the STRS Defined Benefit Plan. The parties will review this item annually to determine if it continues to be appropriate.

10.16 Sixth through Eighth Grade Math Teachers Release Day

Sixth, seventh, and eighth grade math teachers will have one release day per year for scoring and placement in the math program. The math department and the principal will select the day and set the agenda. The parties will review this item annually to determine if it continues to be appropriate.

10.17 K-5 Instructional Aide Assistance

The District will provide classroom assistance in the form of instructional aides. To the extent the District has discretion with classified employee working conditions, the site principal, in conjunction with the school staff, will assign the aide time to maximize the individual teacher instructional needs.

For those kindergarten teachers participating in an extended day, the District will provide three hours of kindergarten aide assistance.

10.18 Middle School Subject Matter Preparations

The number of different subject matter preparations for middle school teachers will not exceed three for any full-time unit member, unless agreed to by the individual teacher. The District will make all reasonable efforts to avoid a teacher having three subject matter preparation periods.

ARTICLE 11: SAFETY CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

11.1 <u>Safe Working Conditions</u>

- 11.1.1 Teachers shall not be required to work in unsafe conditions or to perform tasks that endanger their health, safety, or well being.
- 11.1.2 The District administration shall inform a unit member of every student who has caused or attempted to cause serious bodily injury or injury to another person, based on any written records that the District maintains or receives from a law enforcement agency or another district regarding a student described in Education Code Section 49079. Any information received by a unit member pursuant to this provision shall be received in confidence for the limited purpose for which it was provided and shall not be further disseminated by the unit member.

11.1.3 Unit members, acting within the scope of their duties and responsibilities, may exercise the amount of physical control reasonably necessary to protect themselves, maintain order, protect property or protect the health and safety of students.

11.2 <u>Student Discipline</u>

- 11.2.1 A unit member may suspend a student from class for the reasons listed in Education Code Section 48900 for two days (the day of suspension and the day following), provided the unit member immediately notifies the principal or designee and sends the student to the principal for appropriate action, and provided further that the teacher schedules the parent conference required by Education Code Section 48910. A school administrator shall attend the conference if the unit member or the parent or guardian so requests.
- 11.2.2 A written description of the rights and duties of unit members with respect to student discipline, including prohibition of corporal punishment and the right to suspend students, shall be given to new teachers and shall be available to all other unit members.

11.3 Attack, Assault, Or Physical Threat By Student

Whenever a unit member is attacked, assaulted, or physically threatened by a student, the unit member shall promptly report the incident to his/her immediate supervisor and to the police or local law enforcement according to Education Code Section 44014. Failure to make the report is punishable by a fine. The District shall be required to comply with any reasonable request from the unit member for non-confidential information in the possession of the District relating to the incident or the persons involved, and shall act in appropriate ways as liaison between the unit members, police and courts.

11.4 Legal Defense Of A Unit Member

The District shall indemnify and defend the unit member if he/she is sued as a result of such assault and the assault was in the course and scope of employment. This indemnification and defense shall be provided in accord with the provisions of Government Code Sections 800 and following.

11.5 <u>Personal Property Protection And Liability Coverage</u>

11.5.1 The employer shall reimburse unit members for the full cost of replacing or repairing clothing, valuables (including money), or other personal property which may be damaged, destroyed, or stolen by a student while the unit member is acting in the proper discharge of duties to a maximum of \$1,000 per incident. Such reimbursement shall also extend to losses incurred as a result of vandalism, burglary, or personal injury to the extent related medical costs are not covered under District-provided insurance. Claims must be filed with the District Office within five days of the occurrence and shall show that the occurrence was the result of student actions.

- 11.5.2 Unit members may have additional rights under Education Code Sections 48904 (liability of student for damage to personal property of unit member) and 48905 (request district legal action against a student for damage to unit member's person or property).
- 11.6 Specialized Health Care
 - 11.6.1 The District shall provide necessary inservice training upon request to each unit member who is, or shall be, required to teach children with special health care needs.
 - 11.6.2 The District shall indemnify and hold harmless from liability, arising out of the provisions of specialized health care services, any unit member who performs specialized health care services in the course and scope of his/her employment.

ARTICLE 12: TRANSFERS

12.1 <u>General Provisions</u>

- 12.1.1 A "Transfer" is a move from one district school to another district school.
- 12.1.2 A "change in assignment" is a change in grade level for K-5 teachers within the same school, or a change in subject matter for teachers grades 6-8.
- 12.1.3 Personnel are employed for the District rather than for a particular grade level or school, and shall be subject to and eligible for transfer within the District. The District Superintendent shall, subject to the approval of the Governing Board, assign all employees of the District employed in positions requiring certification qualifications to positions in which they are to serve. Such power to assign includes the power to transfer a teacher from one school to another school, at which the teacher is certificated to serve, within the District, when the Superintendent concludes that such transfer is in the District's best interest.

12.2 Annual Survey, Posting, And Filling Of Vacancies

- 12.2.1 The Superintendent shall annually survey the certificated staff on or before March 1, seeking preferences for placement for the following year. Along with the survey, the Superintendent shall notify the certificated unit members of all known vacancies for the following year along with an application deadline for each position. A vacancy is created only after assignments are determined by the site principal.
- 12.2.2 The District will provide written reasons for a change in assignment upon request of the unit member whose assignment is changed. Those reasons shall include, but not be limited to the criteria listed in 12.2.5 below.
- 12.2.3 After March 1 the District shall notify unit members of any change in assignment and will thereafter post notices of vacancies as they occur.
- 12.2.4 Any unit member desiring a transfer to a different school for the following year or who wishes to apply for a posted vacancy will be considered as a candidate by the Superintendent. A general transfer request will be made on the survey form. Application for a specific vacancy will be made according to the requirements posted with the vacancy.
- 12.2.5 Transfer to a particular school or selection for a specific position will be based primarily on the needs of the total educational program including, but not limited to, the following criteria as determined by the Superintendent after consultation with the site administrators: appropriate certification; teacher's stated preference; academic preparation and/or interest for classes under consideration; suitability of teaching style to the age of the children; past teaching experience; and district seniority.
- 12.2.6 The Superintendent, after consulting with the site administrators shall complete and publish a staffing chart for the fall prior to the time school is out in June and will notify unit members individually of any transfers necessary or granted.

During the summer, unit members shall be advised of vacancies as they occur.

12.2.7 The District will provide assistance to move classroom materials any time a teacher moves to a different classroom as a result of a change in assignment or a transfer.

12.3 <u>Transfers Due To School Closing</u>

- 12.3.1 If a particular school is to be closed, then unit members at that school shall be accorded first priority for filling any new or vacant positions, at the school or schools at which the students from the closing school are being placed, for the coming school year.
- 12.3.2 The unit member from the closed school shall also be accorded first priority for filling all vacancies that arise for which they have an appropriate credential.

12.4 Superintendent-Initiated Transfer

- 12.4.1 Thirty calendar days prior to affecting any transfer, the Superintendent or his agent will consult with the unit member being considered for transfer. The Superintendent shall not involuntarily transfer a unit member for reasons that are arbitrary, capricious, or without a reasonable basis in fact; nor shall an involuntary transfer be made for disciplinary reasons.
- 12.4.2 An involuntarily transferred teacher shall be notified of the right to meet with the Governing Board in executive session, to state the reasons why the transfer should not occur, provided the request to meet with the Governing Board is made within eight calendar days of notice of the transfer by the Superintendent. An Association representative may accompany the teacher.

12.5 <u>Time And Assistance For Involuntary Transfers And Involuntary Change In</u> <u>Assignment</u>

- 12.5.1 Unit members who are involuntarily transferred or are subject to an involuntary change in assignment shall be allowed three days of released time or three days pay, prior to the effective date of the transfer or assignment. The days shall be scheduled by the unit member and the site administrator at a time that is mutually agreeable.
- 12.5.2 If the unit member chooses to receive compensatory days during the school year, such days shall be scheduled at a time that is mutually agreeable to the site administrator and the unit member.

ARTICLE 13: FAILURE TO PERFORM DUTIES

13.1 It is the intention that, during the term of this Agreement, unit members shall faithfully and diligently perform all of the duties normally associated with their positions. There shall be no strike, work stoppage, or any other failure to properly perform assigned duties by the Association, its officers, or unit members.

- 13.2 In the event that any unit members take any steps in violation of the provisions of this section, the Association shall make every effort to prevent such activities and to induce the unit members to comply with the terms of this Agreement.
- 13.3 Nothing in this article shall prohibit the unit members from exercising rights guaranteed to them by the state or federal constitutions or relieve them from responsibilities provided in those constitutions.

ARTICLE 14: PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS

- 14.1 The purpose of this article is to promote high professional standards by providing a corrective and remedial sequence of steps as a means of assisting unit members if the need arises. This article represents a method of dealing with cases of unsatisfactory performance of professional duties short of outright termination. This article shall be used at the District's sole discretion.
- 14.2 It is the intent of the parties that a unit member charged with unsatisfactory actions be accorded the following rights prior to imposition of a suspension:
 - 14.2.1 Notice and opportunity to be heard prior to any action by the District;
 - 14.2.2 The right to be represented by a person of the unit member's choice;
 - 14.2.3 The right to appeal as outlined below.
- 14.3 Under the provisions of this section, the unit member shall not be cited without just cause. It shall be the District's practice to give an informal, verbal warning and written reprimand before implementation of suspension, except in cases of more serious incidents.
- 14.4 Under this section, the District may take action for alleged unsatisfactory actions in the performance of professional duties only for the following reasons:
 - 14.4.1 Violations of District policy, regulations, or the general Code of Ethics and conduct expected of professional educators:
 - 14.4.2 Abusive behavior, of physical or verbal nature, toward students, fellow employees, or the public while performing school-related activities;

- 14.4.3 Failure to comply with administrative directives.
- 14.5 To initiate the formal procedures of this section, the Superintendent or his/her designee shall notify the unit member in writing of the alleged unsatisfactory action. In the event that initial complaint was instituted in writing by a parent, existing complaint policy shall be followed.
- 14.6 Following written notification of the alleged unsatisfactory action, a conference shall be scheduled to discuss the matter with the Superintendent. Within five working days following the conference, the Superintendent shall determine the action to be taken by the District and shall notify the unit member in writing of such action.
 - 14.6.1 Discipline under this article can range from one to five days suspension without pay.
- 14.7 The unit member may elect to appeal the action to be taken by the District. The notice of appeal shall be delivered to the Superintendent or designee within five working days following the communication from the District concerning the action to be taken. Upon notice of appeal, such action shall be stayed pending the appeal process. Within 30 days, the Governing Board shall meet in closed session to hear this matter and shall render its decision within 15 days thereafter.
- 14.8 Nothing in this process shall supersede the unit member's right to seek relief in a court of law or pursuant to the grievance procedure in this contract.
- 14.9 Any suspension without pay shall not reduce or deprive the unit member of seniority, any fringe benefits or other contractual rights.
- 14.10 If the same or similar infraction does not recur within a one-year period, at unit member's request, the administration will so note in writing in the personnel file. If the infraction does not recur within four years, the record shall be removed at the unit member's request.

ARTICLE 15: EVALUATIONS

- 15.1 <u>Introduction</u>
 - 15.1.1 The District and the Association mutually agree on the importance of an evaluation system that:
 - 15.1.1.1 Acknowledges excellence in teaching, encourages collegiality for professional growth, and supports those needing assistance.

- 15.1.1.2 Allows administrators and teachers, to work together efficiently and effectively to continuously improve education in our schools.
- 15.1.1.3 Is based on the California Standards for the Teaching Profession (Teaching Standards) and the Ed Code section 44662 requirements (Ed Code) that are applied with clarity, consistency, and fairness for all teachers.
- 15.1.1.4 Indicates consistent growth toward the Teaching Standards and satisfactory/unsatisfactory performance in the Education Code. An unsatisfactory performance evaluation requires a statement of evidence. An unsatisfactory performance evaluation in instructional strategies and/or subject matter knowledge for any permanent teacher shall result in a referral to the PAR Program.
- 15.1.1.5 Gives teacher the right to be represented by the Association.
- 15.1.1.6 Provides the evaluation forms, attached as Appendix E and incorporated into this Agreement.
- 15.1.2 The responsibilities and duties enumerated in this Article are listed to indicate activities that help accomplish the goals of evaluation. It is not necessarily an all-inclusive list. Staff and administrators are encouraged to design and implement other activities that help fulfill the goals of evaluation.
- 15.1.3 A unit member shall not be evaluated negatively based on any of the following:
 - 15.1.3.1 Any aspect of the educational program over which the unit member has no authority or ability to correct deficiencies;
 - 15.1.3.2 His/her private life including his/her religious or political beliefs, except as it may prevent the teacher from performing his/her assigned functions during the workday;
 - 15.1.3.3 The presentation of controversial materials provided that such material is relevant to the course content and that opposing points of view are presented to the class in a balanced fashion;

- 15.1.3.4 The expression of personal opinions (qualified as his/her personal opinion) to the class in all matters relevant to the course content in conjunction with other materials and/or other views, provided that opposing points of view are presented to the class in a balanced fashion;
- 15.1.3.5 Unit members shall not be required to participate in the evaluation(s) and/or observation(s) of other unit members.
- 15.1.4 The principal shall refer a teacher that receives an unsatisfactory rating in subject matter knowledge and/or teaching strategies to the Peer Assistance and Review (PAR).
- 15.1.5 <u>Procedures</u>
 - 15.1.5.1 The unit member shall have the right to identify any constraints that the unit member believes may inhibit his/her ability to meet the objectives and standards established.
 - 15.1.5.2 If, in the opinion of the unit member, changed circumstances later alter the factors regarding his/her prior or current evaluation, the unit member may place in writing his/her account of these changed circumstances.
 - 15.1.5.3 A formal evaluation conference shall be held to discuss the written final evaluation report. It shall be held no later than March 1 for a probationary teacher and May 1 for all others. The contents of the observation forms and the Evaluation Report shall be discussed at the conference. Written comments made by the evaluator shall be discussed. In the event the unit member disputes the content, the unit member may prepare a written statement, which shall be attached to the final evaluation.
 - 15.1.5.4 If the unit member meets the requirements of the plan, he/she will receive a satisfactory year-end evaluation.

15.2 Evaluation Plans

15.2.1 Evaluation Plan I: Temporary And Probationary

- 15.2.1.1 Formal evaluation occurs every year. Its purpose is:
 - 15.2.1.1.1 To provide support for non-permanent teacher's consistent growth toward meeting

the Teaching Standards and satisfactory performance in Ed Code areas.

15.2.1.1.2 To observe the work of the teacher for a sufficient period of time to make an appropriate assessment. This will include at least two formal observations.

15.2.1.2 <u>Timelines</u>

Timelines are dates by when the procedures are expected to be accomplished, although exceptions may be made when mutually agreed upon. All changes will be documented in writing. If procedures are not accomplished within two weeks after the established dates listed, some aspects of the teacher's performance that year may be impossible or inappropriate to evaluate. If a teacher or administrator does not accomplish his/her responsibility by an established date, it must be reflected in that staff member's evaluation.

- Meeting by October 15 to discuss no more than two mutually agreed upon goals utilizing the Teaching Standards.
- Two rounds of pre-observation conference, observation and post-observation conference between November 1 and March 1 with a final written evaluation and conference by May 1.

15.2.2 Evaluation Plan II: Permanent Staff

- 15.2.2.1 Permanent teachers who show consistent growth toward Teaching Standards and satisfactory performance in Ed Code areas may select either Plan A or Plan B. The teacher must obtain approval of the administrator to participate in Plan B.
 - 15.2.2.1.1 All permanent teachers will have a formal evaluation (written summary evaluation) every other year except when:
 - The teacher has been teaching 10 or more years for the Mill Valley School District and has shown consistent growth in the Teaching Standards and satisfactory

performance in the Ed Code areas. They will be evaluated every five years;

- the administrator determines that a teacher will have a formal evaluation for a second consecutive year;
- the teacher does not show consistent growth toward the Teaching Standards and satisfactory performance in the Ed Code areas and a Support Plan (Pan III) is implemented;
- the teacher does not show consistent growth toward the Teaching Standards and satisfactory performance in the Ed Code areas or has been given an Unsatisfactory Rating and Plan IV (Permanent Staff Unsatisfactory) is implemented.
- Option for additional evaluation:
 - If unit member is granted a leave of absence for one semester or longer,
 - If unit member moves to another grade level or assignment;
 - If principal is new to the school;
 - By teacher or administrator request;

A Unit member may request an additional administrator to be present at a formal observation and administrator will provide written feedback to both originating administrator and unit member. Selection of administrator will be determined by the Superintendent.

15.2.2.1.2 Plan A: Standard Plan

This plan is available to all permanent teachers who show consistent growth toward the standards set forth in this Article.

Timelines For Formal Evaluation Year:

- Administrator and the teacher will meet by October 15th to discuss goals and objectives based on the Teaching Standards and to schedule preconference(s), observation(s), and postconference(s).
- Complete formal observation by April 1.
- Complete final written evaluation and conference by May 1. Include progress toward achievement of goals.

Procedures For The Teacher:

• Develop a plan with objectives based on the Teaching Standards.

Procedures Required Of The Administrator:

- To assist teachers in preparing a plan to provide support and resources for teacher's continuous progress toward achievement of the objectives in the plan, and to assess achievement of those objectives.
- To observe and discuss the work of the teacher in order to make an appropriate assessment. This will include at least one formal observation.

Formal Observation:

An objective classroom observation by the administrator that:

- is announced at least two days in advance;
- is preceded by a conference between administrator and teacher with the purpose to agree upon a plan and objective(s) to be observed;

- is at least 45 minutes in length; and
- is followed by a conference and written report of the administrator's comments no later than 10 school days after the observation.

Informal Observation:

A classroom observation that does not meet one or more of the criteria listed above for a formal observation.

15.2.2.1.3 <u>Plan B: Professional Development Plan</u>

This plan is available to any permanent teacher who has shown consistent growth the Teaching Standards toward and satisfactory progress in the Ed Code areas established in this Article. It has a one year cycle, with a non-evaluation year following each successful evaluation. Teachers evaluated under this plan are expected to meet on a regular basis with their professional development team to discuss teaching concerns and interests and progress toward their plan.

Professional Development Plan:

A document developed by the teacher in consultation with the administrator describing a teacher's professional interests and needs that:

- covers one year of professional activity;
- includes 1-5 long-term professional growth goals that are consistent with school, District, and grade level department goals and priorities;
- identifies the Teaching Standard(s) related to each professional growth objective;

- identifies specific objective(s) and describes activities to be undertaken;
- identifies resources and support need to achieve goals
- provides a summative evaluation at the conclusion of the plan.

15.2.2.2 <u>Timelines</u>

- 15.2.2.2.1 Professional Development plan submitted to and approved by administrator by November 1.
- 15.2.2.2.2 Professional partnership team (team) meets every other month.
- 15.2.2.3 Teacher provides a summative report to administrator by April 15.
- 15.2.2.4 Summative evaluation conference and administrative written report at conclusion of professional development plan by May 1.

15.2.2.3 Procedures Required Of Teacher

- 15.2.2.3.1 To create and participate in a team to inform his/her administrator of the names of the team members, and to document meetings which must occur every other month during the school year to discuss progress toward objectives of plan. The plan may include team member's observing each other on an informal basis.
- 15.2.2.3.2 Provide a summative report to the administrator at the conclusion of the plan by April 15.

15.2.2.4 Procedures Required Of Administrator

15.2.2.4.1 To discuss the professional development plan with participant and sign the plan to indicate acceptance by October 15.

- 15.2.2.4.2 To observe informally on a regular basis as appropriate to support the plan.
- 15.2.2.4.3 To support teacher's professional development goals by providing resources, feedback, and recognition, or by arranging for this support to be provided by others.
- 15.2.2.4.4 To review, discuss and write responses to teacher's reports and collaborative summary evaluation no later than May 1.
- 15.2.2.4.5 To determine and indicate in an annual written response whether a teacher's performance shows consistent growth toward the standards set forth in this Article.

15.2.2.5 Discontinuation Of Professional Development Plan

Teachers who do not show consistent growth toward the Teaching Standards and satisfactory progress in the Ed Code areas at the time of the collaborative summative evaluation shall be evaluated on Plan IIA the following year.

15.2.3 <u>Plan III: Support Plan</u>

Permanent teachers who are determined by their administrator to not show consistent growth toward the Teaching Standards and satisfactory performance in Ed Code areas shall be evaluated as follows:

- 15.2.3.1 Placement under this plan is the result of a teacher's failing to show consistent growth toward the Teaching Standards and satisfactory performance in the Ed Code areas, as identified by the administrator working in consultation with the Superintendent or his/her designee. A teacher shall be placed on this plan whenever it is deemed necessary by the administrator. She/he has the right to representation in this process.
- 15.2.3.2 The administrator and the teacher will develop a plan to address concerns over a support period of 4 to 18 work weeks. The administrator shall notify the Superintendent or designee of the plan.

- 15.2.3.3 At the end of the agreed-upon support period, if the teacher's performance does not show consistent growth toward the Teaching Standards and satisfactory performance in Ed Code areas and it is a formal evaluation year, the administrator shall notify the teacher in writing that s/he is being placed on Plan IV: Improvement.
- 15.2.3.4 While the administrator may request any assistance or resources that s/he deems appropriate, it is the administrator's responsibility to monitor and supervise staff placed on this plan. If the teacher feels they have been evaluated unfairly, he/she can make a written request for review or observation by a second administrator.
- 15.2.3.5 When a teacher has been placed on this plan, the teacher, the site administrator, the Superintendent or designee will develop a support plan which shall specify:
 - duration of the plan, not to exceed 18 weeks;
 - performance concerns, including the Teaching Standards and satisfactory performance in Education Code areas to be addressed;
 - support to be provided to the teacher, which the teacher may elect to use or not to use;
 - information about the purpose of classroom observations to be made, which may be announced or unannounced;
 - discussion with teacher regarding classroom observation;
 - description of what will be considered satisfactory progress toward showing consistent growth toward the Teaching Standards and satisfactory progress in Education Code areas;
 - dates of written progress reports and summary evaluation.
- 15.2.3.6 At least every six weeks the administrator shall complete a written report on the teacher's progress and discuss it

with the teacher. Each report will clearly identify the standard(s) and element(s) where consistent growth needs to continue to be addressed.

- 15.2.3.7 At the end of the period specified in the Support Plan, the administrator will write a summary of the teacher's performance. If this period falls other than at the end of the school year and it is an evaluation year, the teacher will return to evaluation Plan IIA: Standard Plan.
 - 15.2.3.7.1 If the administrator determines that the teacher has shown consistent growth toward the Teaching Standards and satisfactory progress in Ed Code areas and it is an evaluation year, s/he will return to the standard evaluation plan for permanent staff and be evaluated in the current or following school year. Thereafter, the teacher may select evaluation under a multi-year professional plan if the administrator agrees.
 - 15.2.3.7.2 If the administrator determines that a teacher has made satisfactory progress but still does not show consistent growth toward the Teaching Standards, and has not met the support plan, an extension of this plan may be granted for up to 18 weeks.
 - 15.2.3.7.3 If the administrator determines that a teacher has not shown consistent growth toward the Teaching Standards and satisfactory progress in Ed Code areas and it is an evaluation year and has not met the support plan, the teacher will be placed on Plan IV: Permanent Staff Unsatisfactory.
 - 15.2.3.7.4 If it is an evaluation year for the teacher, the administrator in consultation with the Superintendent or his/her designee shall identify individuals to be placed on Plan IV: Improvement Plan. The teacher shall be notified of this decision at a meeting with the administrator, the Superintendent or his/her designee, in order to clearly delineate concerns associated with the teacher's

performance. The teacher has a right to be represented.

15.2.3.7.5 The District may place the support plan and the administrative summary in the teacher's personnel file.

15.2.4 Plan IV: Permanent Staff Unsatisfactory: Improvement Plan

A teacher who has received an unsatisfactory rating and is not making satisfactory improvement during a period of support in the Support Plan (Plan III) shall be evaluated under this plan. Evaluations are structured to document the quality of the teacher's performance and the efforts expended in assisting the teacher to improve performance. This plan requires careful monitoring and analysis of the teacher's performance.

15.2.4.1 <u>Procedures</u>

- 15.2.4.1.1 The administrator, teacher, and Superintendent or his/her designee, shall develop the teacher's improvement plan to address the areas of unsatisfactory performance. The minimum duration of this improvement plan will be nine weeks.
- 15.2.4.1.2 At least every three weeks the administrator shall complete a written review of the teacher's progress and discuss this report with the teacher. The teacher may submit a written response.
- 15.2.4.1.3 The administrator shall write a summary evaluation by a date specified in the improvement plan, no later than 10 working days after the conclusion of this plan. The Superintendent or his/her designee will review this summary.
 - If the administrator and Superintendent or designee, determine that the teacher shows satisfactory performance on the Improvement Plan at the end of the plan, the teacher will be evaluated under the Plan IIA for permanent staff for the remainder of that school year and the

following year, receiving a summary evaluation by May 1 in each of those years. Thereafter, the teacher may select evaluation under а multi-vear professional plan if the administrator If the teacher does not show agrees. performance satisfactorv on the Improvement Plan, he/she shall continue on Plan IV.

• The improvement plan, progress reports, and summary evaluation required under this plan will be placed in the teacher's personnel file.

15.2.5 <u>Salary Placement</u>

If a unit member receives an unsatisfactory year end evaluation, the unit member will not receive his/her salary step and class for the following year subject to the following conditions:

- 15.2.5.1 The teacher will be placed on Plan IV: Improvement Plan.
- 15.2.5.2 If the unit member meets the requirements of the plan, he/she will receive a satisfactory year end evaluation and return to his/her step and class on the salary schedule for the following year.

15.3 <u>Required Procedures For All Evaluation Plans</u>

- 15.3.1 <u>Procedures Required Of Teachers: All Plans</u>
 - 15.3.1.1 To follow the timeline for relevant plan.
 - 15.3.1.2 To meet with his/her administrator to discuss consistent growth toward the Teaching Standards and satisfactory performance in Ed Code areas and/or achievement of the teacher's objectives.

15.3.2 <u>Procedures Required Of Administrators: All Plans</u>

- 15.3.2.1 To follow the timelines for relevant plan;
- 15.3.2.2 To make formal and informal classroom observations, as needed, to make an appropriate assessment.

- 15.3.2.3 To be sure that no more than two administrators observe a teacher at the same time.
- 15.3.2.4 To assist the teacher in identifying desired improvements and in developing a plan to effect those improvements. If a desired or needed improvement for a teacher is identified, the administrator shall indicate in writing whether or not the teacher has effected or partially effected improvement.
- 15.3.2.5 To determine whether a teacher's performance shows consistent growth toward the Teaching Standards and satisfactory performance in Ed Code areas. If it does not, the administrator shall communicate this to the teacher in writing. The judgment of teacher performance reported on the Summary Evaluation will determine the evaluation status of the teacher at the start of the next school year.
- 15.4 <u>Procedures To Resolve Disagreement Over Teaching Standard Goals</u> (Plan IIA) And/Or Professional Development Plan (IIB)

The following procedures shall be followed in the event of a disagreement between the teacher and the administrator regarding the Professional Development Plan or Teaching Standard goals. The teacher has the right to representation in all proceedings.

- 15.4.1 The teacher and the administrator shall make a good faith effort to resolve the disagreement.
- 15.4.2 If the disagreement persists, the parties may mutually agree on a third party to assist in resolving the disagreement.
- 15.4.3 If the third party is not successful in helping the teacher and administrator to resolve the disagreement, the teacher, administrator, and the third party shall each have the opportunity to state his/her position on the matter(s) in dispute and to have a written statement attached to the Teaching Standard Goals or Professional Development Plan. If necessary, the Superintendent or designee shall make the final decision on the matter(s) in dispute.

15.5 <u>Responsibilities Of The Superintendent Or Designee</u>

- 15.5.1 To ensure fairness in the evaluation process by:
 - 15.5.1.1 consulting with administrators to ensure that judgments are based upon appropriate evidence;
 - 15.5.1.2 helping administrators identify and assist teachers who do not show consistent growth toward the Teaching Standards and satisfactory performance in Ed Code areas, or assisting those teachers directly;
 - 15.5.1.3 reviewing completed summary evaluations;
 - 15.5.1.4 ensuring that timelines are followed and evaluations are completed.
- 15.5.2 To provide for training of administrators who must evaluate the work of others.
- 15.5.3 To make decisions regarding the initiation of termination of a teacher, pursuant to the Education Code.

ARTICLE 16: PEER ASSISTANCE AND REVIEW (PAR)

16.1 <u>Introduction</u>

The Association and the District are continuously striving to provide the highest possible quality education. In order for students to succeed in learning, teachers must succeed in teaching. Therefore, the parties agree to cooperate in the design and implementation of programs to improve the quality of instruction through expanded and improved professional development and peer assistance. Teachers referred or who volunteer for the program are viewed as valuable professionals who deserve to have the best resources available provided to them in the interest of improving performance to a successful standard.

- 16.2 <u>Definitions</u>
 - 16.2.1 "Joint Panel" serves as the governing body of the PAR program.
 - 16.2.2 "Support Provider" is a teacher who provides assistance to Referred Participating Teachers and Volunteer Participating Teachers pursuant to the PAR program and Beginning Teachers under Beginning Teacher Support Assessment Program (BTSA).

- 16.2.3 "Referred Participating Teacher" is a teacher with permanent status who receives assistance to improve his/her instructional techniques or methodology and/or subject matter knowledge as a result of an unsatisfactory final evaluation.
- 16.2.4 "Volunteer Participating Teacher" is a teacher with permanent status who volunteers to participate in the PAR program.
- 16.2.5 "Beginning Teacher" is a teacher in the 1st or 2nd year of his/her career who is in the BTSA program.
- 16.3 Joint Panel
 - 16.3.1 A Joint Panel shall be established and will be composed of three (one K-2, one 3-5, one 6-8) classroom teachers and two administrators.
 - 16.3.1.1 The Association is responsible for holding an election for classroom teachers to serve as joint panel members.
 - 16.3.1.2 The Superintendent shall appoint the administrator panel members. At least one administrator panel member shall be a site administrator. Initially, one administrator panel member shall serve for three years and one shall serve for two years. All subsequent terms shall be for three years.
 - 16.3.1.3 Panel members shall be chosen no later than October 1 of an election year. Initially, two classroom teacher panel members shall serve for three years and one shall serve for two years. All subsequent terms shall be for three years.
 - 16.3.1.4 Panel members will participate in training to understand the PAR and BTSA program as well as formative assessment not to exceed one day of training.
 - 16.3.2 The Joint Panel shall meet as needed.
 - 16.3.3 The Joint Panel shall be responsible for the following:
 - 16.3.3.1 Adopting Rules and Procedures to effect the provisions of this program. Said Rules and Procedures will be consistent with the provisions of this Agreement, and to the extent there is an inconsistency, the Agreement will prevail.

- 16.3.3.2 Receiving necessary training to implement the PAR and BTSA program.
- 16.3.3.3 Selecting PAR and BTSA Support Providers by June 1 for the following year, depending upon need.
- 16.3.3.4 The selection process for Support Provider shall include a classroom observation of candidates.
- 16.3.3.5 Reviewing the final reports prepared by the Support Provider and making written recommendations to the Governing Board regarding the Referred Teacher's progress in the PAR program. Only the panel's written recommendation shall be made available for placement in the Referred Teacher's personnel file.
- 16.3.3.6 Evaluating annually the impact of the PAR program in order to improve the program.
- 16.3.4 All proceedings and materials related to evaluations, reports, and all personnel matters shall be strictly confidential. Therefore, Joint Panel members and Support Providers may disclose such information only as necessary to administer this article. Each member shall annually sign a confidentiality statement.
- 16.3.5 Joint Panel teacher members shall be provided reasonable release time for training regarding their duties and observations of Support Provider applicants. If inservice training takes place outside of work hours, these teachers shall be compensated at the appropriate rate.

16.4 <u>Support Provider</u>

- 16.4.1 Classroom teachers shall file an application to become a Support Provider no later than May 1 each year and shall meet the following qualifications:
 - 16.4.1.1 Be a permanent classroom teacher.
 - 16.4.1.2 Possess substantial recent experience in classroom instruction.
 - 16.4.1.3 Demonstrate exemplary teaching ability, which includes effective communication skills, subject matter knowledge, and a mastery of a range of teaching strategies to meet student needs in different contexts; demonstrate strength in instructional strategies, classroom management,

planning and organization for teaching, and principles of learning.

- 16.4.1.4 Commit to California Formative Assessment and Support System for Teachers (CFASST) training or alternative comparable program.
- 16.4.1.5 Joint Panel may recommend that Support Providers take additional training or Support Providers may request additional training from the Joint Panel.
- 16.4.2 Support Providers shall be appointed for a one-year term but may reapply.
- 16.4.3 No more than one Referred Participating Teacher may be assigned to a Support Provider on an annual basis.
- 16.4.4 PAR Support Providers shall prepare at least two peer review reports and a final summary report per school year on the Referred Participating Teacher they assist. These reports shall contain a record of the events and observations that have occurred between Support Provider and Referred Participating Teacher and shall not be evaluative. They shall be submitted to the Joint Panel, the principal of the Referred Participating Teacher and the Referred Participating Teacher, and shall not be made available for placement in the personnel file.
- 16.4.5 <u>Stipends And Caseload</u>
 - 16.4.5.1 The Support Provider shall be paid a yearly stipend based on the following assignments:

Referred Predicating Teacher	\$2,500
Volunteer Participating Teacher	\$1,000
Each 1st year Beginning Teacher	\$2,000
Each 2nd year Beginning Teacher	\$2,000

Stipends are based on full year participating of staff. If staff participates for less than one full year, stipends will be prorated.

16.4.5.2 The Joint Panel and the Support Provider shall mutually determine the Support Provider's caseload subject to the following:

Maximum Caseload for Support Providers

Full time teacher (1.0)	2-1st year Beginning Teachers
or	1-1st year and 2-2nd year
	Beginning Teachers
or	1 Referred Teacher

16.4.5.3 Support Providers who are not full time teachers or who are on leave will meet with the Assistant Superintendent to determine an appropriate caseload.

16.5 <u>Referred Participating Teacher</u>

- 16.5.1 Referred Participating Teachers shall be provided:
 - 16.5.1.1 Multiple PAR Support Provider observations during classroom instruction.
 - 16.5.1.2 Reasonable training and other support as needed to assist improvement in teaching skills and knowledge.
 - 16.5.1.3 The opportunity to prioritize and indicate preferences as to who would be their Support Provider of those available. The Joint Panel shall review the list of preferences and shall assign a Support Provider.
 - 16.5.1.4 Performance goals for participating teachers in writing, clearly stated, aligned with student learning and consistent with Education Code Section 44662.
 - 16.5.1.5 The right to submit a written response within 10 days and have it attached to any report by the Support Provider and/or Joint Panel.
 - 16.5.1.6 The right to request a meeting with the Joint Panel with the right to have representation.

16.6 <u>Beginning Teacher/Volunteer Participating Teacher</u>

- 16.6.1 The Joint Panel shall determine the number of Volunteer Participating Teachers admitted into the program each year.
- 16.6.2 The purpose of participation in the PAR program for Volunteer Participating Teachers is for peer assistance only. The Volunteer Participating Teacher may terminate his/her participation in the PAR program at any time.
- 16.6.3 All communication between the Support Provider and the Volunteer Participating Teacher or Beginning Teacher shall be

confidential and, without the written consent of the Volunteer Participating Teacher or Beginning Teacher, shall not be shared with others, including the site principal, the evaluator, or the Joint Panel.

16.7 <u>Program Budget</u>

- 16.7.1 The total annual expenses of the programs in this article shall not exceed the District's revenue for that year for the PAR program.
- 16.7.2 Revenues for this program shall be used for PAR, BTSA, and/or professional development or other educational activities.

16.8 <u>Summary</u>

- 16.8.1 The program should be designed so that participants expect and are strongly encouraged to have a cooperative relationship between the Support Provider and the principal/evaluator with respect to the PAR process. The principal shall retain the responsibilities for evaluation pursuant to Article 16.
- 16.8.2 The Association and the District shall jointly monitor the development and implementation of this program.
- 16.8.3 This article shall comply with the Education Code requirements regarding Peer Assistance and Review. Based upon legislative modification or deletion of the PAR program, the Association and the District agree to negotiate the effects of these actions.

ARTICLE 17: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

17.1 <u>Definitions</u>

- 17.1.1 A "grievance" is a claim by one or more teachers or the Association that there has been a violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of a provision of this Agreement.
- 17.1.2 A "grievant" is a unit member or the Association making the claim.
- 17.1.3 A "day" is any day on which the District Office is open for business.

17.2 <u>Purpose</u>

17.2.1 The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible administrative level, equitable solutions to the problems which may

from time to time arise affecting unit members. Both parties agree that these proceedings will be kept as informal and confidential as may be appropriate at any level of the procedure.

- 17.2.2 Since it is important that grievances be processed as rapidly as possible, the time limit specified at each level should be considered to be the maximum and every effort should be made to expedite the process. In unusual circumstances, the time limits may be extended by mutual agreement.
- 17.2.3 In the event a grievance is filed at such a time that it cannot be processed through all the steps in this grievance procedure by the end of the school year and the grievant, by reason of prior commitments, is unable to continue with the processing of the grievance through the summer, the parties shall meet and work out an appropriate schedule for the completion of the grievance process.

17.3 <u>Formal Level</u>

- 17.3.1 <u>Level I</u>
 - 17.3.1.1 Within 30 days after the occurrence of the acts or events giving rise to the grievance, the grievant must present his or her grievance in writing on the form prescribed by the District to the grievant's immediate supervisor. However, the grievant is encouraged to discuss the issues informally with the appropriate District official before actually filing the grievance. The District will extend the time limit for filing the grievance if there is a reasonable probability the grievance will be resolved informally.
 - 17.3.1.2 This statement shall be a clear, concise statement of the grievance, with the specific section of the collective bargaining agreement allegedly violated, the circumstances involved, the decision rendered at the informal conference, and the specific remedy sought.
 - 17.3.1.3 Within 10 days after receipt of the written grievance, the immediate supervisor shall meet with the grievant in an effort to resolve it. Within 10 days thereafter, the supervisor shall communicate his or her decision in writing to the grievant.

- 17.3.2 <u>Level II</u>
 - 17.3.2.1 If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level I, or if no written decision has been rendered within 10 days after the meeting with the immediate supervisor, the grievant may, within 10 days, appeal the decision to the Superintendent.
 - 17.3.2.2 This appeal shall include a copy of the original grievance, the decision rendered at Level I, and a clear, concise statement of the reasons for the appeal.
 - 17.3.2.3 The Superintendent, or his designee, shall communicate his decision, in writing, to the grievant within 20 days after receiving the appeal.

17.3.3 <u>Level III</u>

- 17.3.3.1 In the event the grievant is not satisfied with the decision at Level II, he/she may, within 10 working days after receipt of the decision from the Superintendent, or his/her designee, request in writing that the Association submit the grievance to arbitration. The Association, by written notice to the Superintendent within 15 days of the receipt of the request from the grievant, may submit the grievance to arbitration. If not submitted by the Association, the decision at Level II shall be final.
- 17.3.3.2 The parties shall mutually agree upon an arbitrator. In the event they are unable to agree on an arbitrator within 10 days of the Association's submittal of the grievance to arbitration, the arbitrator shall be selected from a list submitted by the State Mediation and Conciliation Service. If the grievant and the Superintendent cannot agree on an arbitrator from the list, each party shall alternately strike names until only one name remains.
- 17.3.3.3 The arbitrator shall conduct a hearing at which both parties may present evidence. After completing the hearing, the arbitrator shall prepare a report listing the issues, the pertinent facts, and proposed decision. This report shall be sent to the Governing Board, the Association, the grievant, and the Superintendent. The cost of the arbitrator and the arbitration process shall be borne equally by the Association and the District.

17.3.3.4 The arbitrator's proposed decision shall be binding upon both parties.

17.4 <u>Miscellaneous</u>

- 17.4.1 No reprisals of any kind will be taken by the Superintendent, or by any member or representative of the administration or of the Governing Board, against participants in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation.
- 17.4.2 A teacher may be represented in all stages of the grievance procedure by him or herself, or, at his or her option, by a representative of his/her choice.
- 17.4.3 If a grievance arises from action or inaction on the part of a member of the administration at a level above the principal or immediate supervisor, the grievant shall submit the grievance in writing to the Superintendent directly, and the processing of such grievance shall be commenced at Level II.
- 17.4.4 Decisions rendered at Levels I and II of the grievance procedure will be in writing, setting forth the decision and the reasons therefore, and will be transmitted promptly to the grievant and to the President of the Association.
- 17.4.5 Time limits for appeal provided in each level shall begin the day following receipt of the decision by the grievant. Failure by the grievant to appeal a decision within the specified time limit shall be deemed an acceptance of the decision.
- 17.4.6 A teacher may present grievances to the District and have such grievances adjusted, without intervention of the Association, so long as the adjustment is not inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement. However, the District shall not agree to a resolution of a grievance until the Association has received a copy of the grievance and the proposed resolution and has been given the opportunity to file a response.
- 17.4.7 All documents, communications, and records dealing with the processing of a grievance will be filed in a separate grievance file and will not be kept in the personnel file of any of the participants.
- 17.4.8 The grievant and any necessary witness shall be granted released time with pay to attend any hearing required by these grievance procedures.

- 17.4.9 Forms for filing grievances, servings of notice, taking appeals, making reports and recommendations, and other necessary documents will be prepared by the District and submitted to the Association for review and comment.
- 17.4.10 The grievant shall continue to discharge his/her duties and comply with the direction of the Administration until the grievance is resolved.

ARTICLE 18: CLASS SIZE

18.1 <u>K-5 Class Size</u>

18.1.1 K-5 Teachers will receive the following class size stipends:

If the average of the December 15 and April 15 enrollment

- Equals 28 students: 3 days of pay
- Equals 29 students: 4 days of pay
- Equals 30 students: 5 days of pay
- Equals 31 students or greater: 6 days of pay
- 18.1.2 If enrollment of a K-5 class equals 25 or more, the K-5 teachers will receiveone release day per trimester or equivalent of one per diem day for the school year.
- 18.1.3 Two hours per day of additional aide time will be provided to K-3 teachers whose enrollment equals 25 or more students and 4/5 teachers whose enrollment equals 30 or more students.

18.2 <u>Middle School Teachers</u>

18.2.1 <u>Student Contacts</u>

Assigned student contacts will not exceed 140 per teacher, except for Art and PE. The total student contacts for Art will not exceed 200 (After the first student day of school, to provide scheduling flexibility, the total student contacts for art will not exceed 205. Any enrollment increases over 200 contacts, will only occur after the Administration has met with the Art teacher and MVTA representative to demonstrate a need.); and the total contacts for PE will not exceed 280, with a maximum of 30 in any one class.

18.2.2 Subject Preparations

The number of different subject matter preparation periods will not exceed three for any full-time unit member, unless agreed to by the individual teacher. The District will make all reasonable efforts to avoid a teacher having three subject matter preparation periods.

ARTICLE 19: LEAVES

19.1 Sick Leave

19.1.1 <u>Entitlement</u>

- 19.1.1.1 Full-time unit members are entitled to ten (10) days per year of sick leave, commencing on the first day of employment. Sick leave for unit members who work less than full-time shall be pro-rated proportionately to their workload. A unit member will receive full pay for those days of absence covered by accumulated sick leave.
- 19.1.1.2 In any school year, unit members may use up to a maximum of five (5) days of accrued and available sick leave under subsection 19.1.1.1 to attend to illness of the unit member's immediate family as defined under subsection 19.1.1.4. This leave is in addition to any other rights to leave in this article. All conditions pertaining to the use of sick leave shall apply to the leave for care of a sick member of the immediate family; and this section shall not extend the maximum period of unpaid leave under the Federal Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) or the California Family Rights Act (CFRA).

19.1.1.3 When a unit member has exhausted all available sick leave, including any access to catastrophic leave in this Article, and continues to be absent from duty on account of a personal illness or accident for an additional period of up to five school months, fifty percent (50%) of the unit member's daily rate shall be deducted from the salary due the unit member for each day of the additional five months in which the absence occurs.

The accumulated sick leave and the five-month period shall run consecutively.

A unit member shall not be provided more than one fivemonth period per illness or accident. However, if a school year terminates before the five-month period is exhausted, the unit member may take the balance of the five-month period in a subsequent school year.

19.1.1.4 Definition Of Immediate Family And Domestic Partner

The "immediate family" for purpose of this article is defined as: a mother, mother-in-law, father, father-inlaw, spouse, son, son-in-law, daughter, daughter-in-law, step-child, foster child, brother, brother-in-law, sister, sister-in-law, grandmother, grandfather, grandchild of the unit member, any relative living in the immediate household of the unit member, or a domestic partner.

A "domestic partner" for purposes of this collective agreement is an individual who provides the District with a valid declaration of domestic partnership.

The District will honor the above definition of domestic partner in the applications of dental, vision and medical benefits to the extent allowed by the specific providers.

19.1.2 <u>Notice And Conditions</u>

- 19.1.2.1 When reasonably possible, all unit members shall give notice of their impending absence.
- 19.1.2.2 After school hours, unit members shall notify the District of their impending absence.
- 19.1.2.3 If a unit member fails to give notice within the time limit specified of his/her intention to return after illness or accident and if a substitute appears for the day's work, as

a result of the unit member's failure to cancel an absence, the substitute shall receive full-day substitute pay and one day shall be deducted from the unit member's available sick leave.

19.1.2.4 A sick leave day once commenced may not be reinstated as a work day.

19.1.3 Limitations

- 19.1.3.1 A physician's written verification of the reason for absence in excess of three days may be required by the District prior to payment. In the event of any indication of abuse, however, the District may require medical verification for any absence.
- 19.1.3.2 In the event of a concerted work stoppage, the District may require an affidavit as to the reason for the absence and may request medical verification prior to payment if sick leave is requested.

19.1.4 <u>Deductible From Sick Leave As Personal Necessity</u>

During any school year, a unit member may use, at his/her election not more than ten (10) days of accumulated sick leave benefits in the following cases of personal necessity:

19.1.4.1 Bereavement

This leave is in addition to the bereavement leave that is not deducted from accumulated sick leave as set forth in Subsection 19.4 of this article.

19.1.4.2 <u>Court Appearance</u>

For reasons other than those defined in Subsection 19.8, such as appearance in court as a litigant.

19.1.4.3 <u>Religious Observance</u>

19.1.4.4 Accident

Accident, involving a unit member's person, property, or the person or property of a unit member's immediate family, as defined above, that requires the immediate presence of the unit member during the work day.

19.1.4.5 <u>Personal Necessity</u>

A matter of other personal necessity that cannot be taken care of during the unit member's work day and is not a matter of personal convenience.

19.2 <u>California Pregnancy Disability Leave And Related Non- CFRA/FMLA Leave</u>

19.2.1 <u>Unpaid Leaves</u>

Subject to the time limitations set forth in subsection 19.2.4 below, leave without pay or other benefits shall be granted to any unit member who applies for leave which precedes pregnancy disability leave, or adoption of a child, or leave for purposes of bonding with his/her newborn infant, recently adopted child or recently placed foster child (as those terms are defined by the CFRA. Hereafter "bonding leave").

The unit member shall request leave as soon as practicable, but under no circumstances less than thirty (30) days prior to the date on which the leave is to begin.

19.2.2 Paid Leave For Pregnancy Disability

This leave commences with the onset of disability due to pregnancy unless the unit member is on a Board-approved uncompensated leave. The unit member may utilize sick leave pay and extended disability pay for no more than that limited period of time when the employee's physician certifies in writing that she is actually physically unable to perform her duties caused by pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, or recovery from miscarriage or childbirth.

19.2.3 At least four (4) months prior to the expected birth of the child, the unit member shall submit to the District a physician's statement noting the expected date of birth. A unit member may continue work until the onset of physical disability as verified in writing by the unit member's physician <u>Determination Of Length Of Leave</u>

19.2.3.1 Pregnancy Disability Leave

The length of the pregnancy disability shall be determined by the period of disability as certified by the unit member's physician, not to exceed the time allowed under the combination of the California Pregnancy Leave Act with the CFRA and/or the FMLA. This combination may allow a unit member leave up to seven months of disability with benefits. (4 months under California Pregnancy Leave Act plus 12 weeks under CFRA).

19.2.3.2 Child Bonding And Childbearing Preparation

The District and the unit member shall determine the length of the leave for childbearing preparation and child bonding at the time of the leave request for pregnancy disability. This leave will normally extend to the end of a trimester or school year.

19.2.3.3 Child-bonding leave without salary nor benefits may be renewed at the District's discretion for an additional school year.

19.2.4 <u>Determination Of The Amount Of Pay During Leave</u>

- 19.2.4.1 Generally, bonding leave is without pay. Unit members that qualify for CFRA may request up to four weeks of bonding pay, (the difference between the substitute's daily rate and the unit member's daily rate, for child bonding. This pay may be utilized in conjunction with leave agreed to under 19.2.3.2. It may, but need not be, in addition to CFRA/FMLA granted leave)
- 19.2.4.2 Leave for pregnancy disability shall be with pay to the extent the unit member has accumulated sick leave and sick leave differential to provide continuation of pay during the disability.
- 19.2.4.3 Health and welfare benefits will be provided for the period of time the unit member is entitled to paid pregnancy disability leave plus leave available under the FMLA or the CFRA. For those work days not covered by paid leave or by the above listed Acts, health and welfare benefits shall be prorated annually on the basis of actual paid workdays compared to total regular annual workdays. This figure shall be rounded to the nearest month of the twelve months of benefit payments. For example, if the unit member was in paid status for 149 of 186 total work days, the calculation would be 149/186 x 12 months = 9.6 months, rounded to 10 months. (See also Subsection 21.3 of this Agreement.)

19.2.5 <u>Right Of Return To Assignment</u>

19.2.5.1 Pregnancy Disability Leave

A unit member on pregnancy disability leave will have the same right to return to work and at the same assignment as any other unit member on a sick leave disability.

19.2.5.2 Unpaid Leave Combined With Pregnancy Leave

When pregnancy disability is combined with child-bearing preparation and/or child bonding leave and approved according to Subsection 19.2.3.2, the unit member shall have the right to return to the same assignment, unless the Superintendent at the time of the leave's approval notifies the unit member in writing that the unit member does not have the right to return to the same assignment. The denial of the right to return to the same assignment shall be considered a change in assignment under Subsection 12.2.2 of the Agreement. There shall be no other diminution of employment rights because of the use of pregnancy disability leave.

19.2.5.3 Child Bonding Only

A unit member solely on child bonding leave will have the right to return to the District at the end of the agreed upon leave period. Time taken for child bonding or child bearing preparation leave shall not count toward probationary status or for salary placement credit. See 21.1.7.1 regarding step advancement implications.

19.3 Family Medical Leave And California Family Rights Act

- 19.3.1 The District will comply with all mandated provisions under the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (29 U.S.C. §§ 2601 et seq.) and the California Family Rights Act (Gov. Code § 12945.2) and reserves the right to act within the dictates of the law.
- 19.3.2 Eligible unit members may take up to 12 weeks of unpaid leave per year in connection with: (1) the birth and bonding with the unit member's child; (2) the adoption or foster placement of a child; (3) serious health condition of a unit member's spouse, child or parent; and (4) the unit member's own serious health condition. When intermittent leave is needed to care for an immediate family

member or the employee's own illness, and is for planned medical treatment, the employee must try to schedule treatment so as to not unduly disrupt the employer's operation. Mutual agreement is needed for intermittent leave.

- 19.3.3 During the leave, unit members are entitled to continuance of group health benefits to the same extent that the District would have paid if the unit member had continued working. The District may recover from the unit member the premiums the District paid for the unit member's benefits while the unit member was on leave if the unit member fails to return from leave or the unit member works less than 30 days after returning from leave.
- 19.3.4 Family and Medical Leave Act and California Family Rights Act leave will run concurrently with other paid and unpaid, except that pregnancy disability leave runs consecutively with the California Family Rights Act leave.

19.4 Leave Due To Bereavement

A unit member is entitled to three days of short-term leave, not deductible from accumulated sick leave, upon the death of any member of his/her immediate family. Five days will be allowed if out-of-state travel is required. Additional days may be granted by the Superintendent.

19.5 <u>Leave Due To Unit Member Hospitalization</u>

A unit member is entitled to three days of short-term leave, not deductible from sick leave, for sudden or unexpected illness, or injury resulting in hospitalization.

19.6 Industrial Accident Or Illness Leave

Industrial accident and illness leaves shall be available to unit members as follows:

- 19.6.1 Allowable leave with pay shall not exceed 60 working days in any one fiscal year for the same accident or illness, and shall not be cumulative from year to year.
- 19.6.2 Industrial Accident or Illness Leave will commence on the first day of absence.
- 19.6.3 Payment for wages lost on any day shall not, when added to awards granted the unit member under the Workers' Compensation laws of this state and/or compensation from District-paid Income Protection

Plans, exceed the unit member's actual wage if he/she were on the job.

- 19.6.4 Industrial Accident Leave will be reduced by one day for each day of authorized absence regardless of a compensation award made under Workers' Compensation.
- 19.6.5 When an Industrial Accident or Illness occurs at a time when the full 60 days will overlap into the next fiscal year, the unit members shall be entitled to only that amount remaining at the end of the fiscal year in which the injury or illness occurred, for the same illness or injury.
- 19.6.6 Entitlement to Industrial Accident or Illness leaves will be based upon the findings by the Workers' Compensation Insurance that the disability has been due to Industrial Accident or Illness. In cases where the Workers' Compensation insurance officials do classify a claim as a disability case, regular sick leave will not be deducted for absence due to the Industrial Accident or Illness until Industrial Accident or Illness Leave, if granted, has been exhausted.

19.7 <u>Sabbatical Leaves</u>

- 19.7.1 This section is suspended from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2016 school year and is subject to annual review at the request of the Association or the District, without being counted as a reopener of the requesting party.
- 19.7.2 Sabbatical leave proposals must be submitted to the Superintendent no later than January 15 of the year preceding the year of the proposed leave.
- 19.7.3 Sabbatical leave proposals shall be reviewed by a sabbatical leave committee composed of two administrators selected by the Superintendent and one teacher from each school, selected by the Association President. Upon receipt of a sabbatical proposal, the Superintendent shall notify the Association President and each shall select committee members.
- 19.7.4 In reviewing sabbatical leave proposals, the sabbatical leave committee shall consider the effect that the proposed leave(s) would have on the continuity of the instructional program at the site where the requesting teacher is assigned, and the benefit which the stated purpose of the leave offers to the instructional program.

- 19.7.5 No later than February 15, the committee shall make a recommendation to the Governing Board if it determines that any of the leave proposals should be approved for the following school year. The Governing Board shall make the final decision whether to approve any leave requests by March 1, or the first regular Board meeting thereafter.
- 19.7.6 One full time sabbatical leave per year may be approved. An individual teacher can apply or two teachers can apply as a pair to share the sabbatical. Compensation shall be 60% of the unit member's salary and paid benefits per the agreement while the unit member is on sabbatical leave.
- 19.7.7 To qualify for sabbatical leave, a unit member must have seven or more years of service in the District in the last nine years, including two years of full time service immediately preceding the year for which the leave is requested.
- 19.7.8 Unit members returning from sabbatical leave shall serve the District in an assignment within their credential for at least two years following the year of leave, or else repay the District for salary and fringe benefits paid during the leave. The District may require the unit member to provide a surety bond to guarantee service or repayment.
- 19.7.9 Upon return from sabbatical leave, the unit member shall submit a written report to the District describing the leave and how it met the goals in the sabbatical leave proposal.

19.8 Jury Duty/Subpoenaed Witness Leave

19.8.1 <u>Jury Duty</u>

A leave with pay shall be granted to unit members called for jury duty in the manner provided for by law. A unit member who receives a jury summons shall submit a copy of the summons to his/her supervisor. At the conclusion of jury duty, the unit member shall submit a statement from the Jury Commissioner's office specifying the dates and times served by the unit member. This shall be attached to the Absence Report. Payment shall be made to the District in the amount of the statutory fees that the unit member has received from attendance as a juror, excluding the statutory mileage fee.

19.8.2 <u>Witness</u>

A unit member may be granted a leave with pay when subpoenaed to appear as a witness, other than as a litigant, in a court of law or other governmental tribunal for reasons not brought about through the connivance or misconduct of the unit member. A unit member requesting such leave shall submit a copy of the subpoena. At the conclusion of his/her appearance, the unit member granted leave shall submit a verified statement, specifying the dates and times the unit member appeared. This shall be attached to the Absence Report. Payment shall be made by the unit member to the District in the amount of the statutory fees that the unit member has received for appearing as a witness, excluding the statutory mileage fee.

19.9 <u>Extended Leaves</u>

- 19.9.1 The Governing Board may, for good cause, at its discretion, grant any unit member (whether tenured or probationary) a leave of absence for a period of up to one school year. All leaves shall be without pay.
- 19.9.2 Application for leave must be submitted to the Superintendent by March 1, of the year preceding the year of the proposed leave, and shall include a statement of purpose.

19.9.3 Obligation Of Unit Member To Notify District Of Future Plans

By March 1 of the year on leave, the unit member shall either notify the District in writing of his/her intent to return to the District, resign, or request an extension. Failure to notify will be deemed a resignation.

19.9.4 <u>Extension Of Leaves</u>

The Governing Board may extend leaves in exceptional circumstances, but only when the District's best interests are served.

19.9.5 <u>Criteria</u>

All leave requests will be considered, with the needs of the school program being paramount.

19.9.6 <u>Extended Leaves – Two Years</u>

The Governing Board may, at its discretion, grant a two-year leave to a person who will teach in a foreign country under a two-year contract, or to a person who will work in the Peace Corps, Vista, or a similar agency. Any request to shorten the approved length of leave must be approved by the Superintendent.

19.10 Shared Contracts

- 19.10.1 Requests for shared contracts shall be submitted to the Superintendent by March 1 of the year preceding the year of the proposed leave. This date may be extended by the Superintendent. Final approval of each request is subject to Governing Board discretion.
- 19.10.2 Shared positions (two part-time teachers working with one class or assignment) must be reviewed and approved annually by the Board.
- 19.10.3 Persons sharing a contract must accept the responsibility of assuring the staff, administration, and parents of successful joint planning, communication among teachers and parents, and compatible classroom management.
- 19.10.4 Unit members returning to full-time status will be entitled to the same rights as any other certificated staff member namely to indicate their preferences at the time classroom assignment preference forms are circulated.
- 19.10.5 Part-time unit members intending to return to full-time status in September must notify the District of their intent to do so by March 1. Failure to do so may result in a continuance of the parttime assignment.
- 19.10.6 Teachers sharing a contract will share proportionately in nonteaching duties allocated to the staff. Together they will assume the approximate responsibilities of one full-time staff person.

19.11 <u>Catastrophic Leave Pool</u>

19.11.1 This procedure shall be administered by the Association pursuant to the provisions of this section. The Association shall designate a committee to administer the procedure. The committee is responsible for contacting unit members regarding their participation in the pool, randomizing and maintaining the donor list, determining which applicants are eligible for donations of catastrophic leave days, and notifying the District of the names of individuals receiving and donating leave days.

Any unit member may participate in this program.

The District will confirm that all donors and recipients meet the program criteria. Upon notification by the committee that it has approved a request for leave days, the District will verify that the recipient is eligible and ensure that the individual has not received more than 20 days, and that total group usage has not exceeded 100 days, in that fiscal year.

19.11.2 Each year on or before September 30, or within two weeks following employment, any certificated unit member who wishes to donate to the catastrophic leave pool will give his/her name to the committee who will assign a random order to the names on the list. As sick days are requested, days will be deducted from donors in the order assigned. Each donating unit member will be notified when a sick leave day has been deducted. If during the year the list is exhausted and the total number of days used by all applicants has not exceeded 100 and there are requests for additional days, the committee may solicit additional donations from unit members.

> As additional donations are made, the committee will assign a random order, with those who have not previously donated being on one list, and any unit members who have donated additional days being placed on another secondary list.

> The total number of catastrophic leave days that may be awarded in any one fiscal year is 100 days.

19.11.3 <u>Criteria For Eligibility To Receive Catastrophic Leave Donations</u>

To be eligible to receive donations of catastrophic leave days:

- The applicant must have already placed his/her name on the donor list.
- The applicant must have a serious long-term illness that is verified by a physician's note containing a diagnosis and prognosis for duration of illness.
- The applicant must have exhausted his/her own fully paid sick leave. The use of catastrophic leave days will run concurrently with extended/sub-differential leave.

- Individuals absent due to industrial illness or accidents are not eligible for catastrophic leave donations, due to their entitlement to industrial leave.
- The committee shall make the determination as to the distribution of day to unit members.

19.11.4 <u>Application Procedures</u>

- Application must be made prior to exhaustion of fully paid leave.
- The application must specify the number of days requested, which may not exceed 20 days.
- The physician's verification of illness (see above) must accompany the application.
- All applications are confidential.
- In case of very serious illness, the individual may request additional days. However, the total days granted to the unit member in any one fiscal year may not exceed 100 days.

ARTICLE 20: LAYOFFS

- 20.1 For the purpose of this article, a layoff shall be an involuntary separation in whole or in part from active service of a probationary or permanent certificated employee for reasons set forth in Education Code Section 44955.
 - 20.1.1 Copies of notices sent to unit members, pursuant to the procedures required by Education Code Section 44955, shall be made available to the Association at the same time they are sent to the unit members.
- 20.2 The District shall maintain a seniority list which shall be made available to the Association.
- 20.3 The District agrees to provide health and welfare benefits at no cost to the laid off unit member. The benefits provided will be the same as those provided for non-laid off unit members and shall be provided until September 30, following the layoff date.
- 20.4 The Association reserves the right to bargain the impact (effects) of program reductions and/or layoffs of unit members on the remaining bargaining unit

in areas of wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment that may not be known until implementation takes effect in the future.

- 20.5 In addition to the causes set out in Education Code Section 44955, a layoff of certificated unit members may also be based on a lack of funds. The Governing Board shall not initiate a layoff for lack of funds, in whole or in part, without first giving prior notice to the Association of the Board meeting at which the issue is to be considered. The Association shall be provided with pertinent information regarding the fiscal situation and given an opportunity to present its position to the Governing Board. The final decision as to the need for a layoff based on lack of funds shall be made by the Governing Board.
- 20.6 All other layoff procedures for certificated unit members shall remain unchanged.
- 20.7 This Article shall not be subject to the Grievance Procedure set forth in Article 17.

ARTICLE 21: COMPENSATION

- 21.1 Salary
 - 21.1.1 <u>2015/2016 School Year</u>
 - 21.1.1.1 The salary schedule attached as Appendix A is effective July 1, 2015.
 - 21.1.1.2 The salary schedule for Counselors attached as Appendix B is effective July 1, 2015.
 - 21.1.1.3 The Extra Duty Stipends are attached as Appendix C.
 - The District will electronically post open stipend positions for ten (10) school district business days before filling.
 - In filling the positions, the District shall attempt, over a period of years, to equitably distribute stipend work opportunities to teachers who are qualified and who respond to the postings.
 - By October 1 of each year the District will provide the MVTA with a list of unit members filling the stipend positions.

21.1.1.4 Normal step and column increments shall be granted for each year of this agreement.

21.1.1.5 Salary Supplements

PhD/EdD - \$1,000 per year National Board Certification - \$1,000 per year Range IV, Step 24 Longevity - \$3,000 per year

21.1.2 <u>2016-2017 School Year</u>

- 21.1.2.1 The salary schedule attached as Appendix A1 is effective July 1, 2016
- 21.1.2.2 The salary schedule for Counselors attached as Appendix B1 is effective July 1, 2016 .
- 21.1.2.3 Unit members in active status on January 15, 2017, will be entitled to receive a non-precedent setting, one-time, lump sum, off schedule payment of (one) 1% of the employee's annual contract of the 2016-2017 salary schedule, earned and payable in the January 2017 pay period.

21.1.3 <u>Placement On The Salary Scale</u>

21.1.3.1 Initial Placement

- 21.1.3.1.1 The Superintendent or his/her designee shall make the initial placement. In so doing, he/she shall grant one year's credit for each year served as a credentialed teacher in a public school, a college, or an accredited private school. The limit on years of credit shall be up to a total of 15 years of service.
- 21.1.3.1.2 The Superintendent shall make initial placements in Class I, II, III, or IV on the basis of official college or university transcripts provided for permanent placement in the personnel files.

- 21.1.4 <u>Course Credit and Class Advancement General Rules, Effective</u> July 1, 2011
 - 21.1.4.1 During the District school year, full-time unit members may undertake for salary advancement no more than six semester units at any one time. Unit members may advance a maximum of one (1) column per year regardless of credits earned during a fiscal year (July 1 – June 30).
 - 21.1.4.2 Unit members planning an advancement in class (column) for the following year must submit the salary advancement form to the District Office by April 15 and submit evidence of completion of the course work by the following September 15.
 - 21.1.4.3 Proof of course completion must be submitted to the District Office within two years of taking the course in order to qualify for credit.
 - 21.1.4.4 Prior to taking a course for salary credit, the unit member must submit the proposed course(s) on the appropriate District form for the principal's approval. In the event that the principal denies credit, the unit member may appeal to the MVTA Executive Board, who would make a recommendation to the Superintendent.
 - 21.1.4.5 At the time of signing this Agreement the link to the appropriate District forms for course approval is Unit Credit for Salary Advancement Form

Class Advancement Form

- 21.1.5 <u>Class Advancement Academic Course Work</u>
 - 21.1.5.1 College or university units must be from an accredited college or university.

- 21.1.5.2 Credits for advancement must be for upper division or graduate units taken in post-AB status. Lower division courses may be used for class advancement in special cases upon prior approval of the principal, in accordance with the process noted in 21.1.4.3 above.
- 21.1.5.3 Course approval will be granted only for those subjects that extend the instructional competency of the unit member. The final decision on instructional competency shall be determined by the principal, in accordance with the process noted in 21.1.4.3 above.
- 21.1.5.4 Credit for any one course may be counted only once.

21.1.6 <u>Class Advancement – Units For Salary Placement Other Than</u> <u>College Or University Credits</u>

- 21.1.6.1 Two units per year may be earned through workshop and conference attendance and participation in District-approved inservice or curriculum development projects.
- 21.1.6.2 These units shall be developed through earning "points" for particular activities or projects. Eighteen points will constitute one semester unit for salary advancement purposes. It is the responsibility of the unit member to keep his/her own records of points earned with appropriate documentation.
- 21.1.6.3 Travel credit must be approved in advance on the basis of a detailed trip plan and proposals for incorporating the travel experience into the instructional program. Credit may be granted only after submission to the principal of information about a successful follow-up classroom activity based on the travel experience within three months of the completion of the trip. Points may be awarded on the basis of four per week of travel.
- 21.1.6.4 Point credit for out-of-District workshops and conferences shall be granted on the basis of one point for each hour of attendance.
- 21.1.6.5 Credit for District in-service workshops shall be on a onehour-per-point basis, except that staff members who direct such activities shall receive two points per hour.

21.1.7 <u>Step Advancement</u>

- 21.1.7.1 A year's experience credit will be granted for each year served. To qualify for a year's step advancement, a unit member must be in paid status at least 75% of the year and work at least 75% of the year. Days worked as a day-to-day substitute shall not count in the 75%.
- 21.1.7.2 For unit members on shared contracts or other part-time contracts, the following shall apply:
- 21.1.7.3 Part-time teachers will be advanced on the salary schedule on the same year-to-year rate as full-time teachers and should be paid a fractional proportion of the salary for that step.
- 21.1.7.4 When a part-time teacher later accepts a full-time contract, his/her salary step should be computed on the basis of the sum of full-time and part-time fractional service. If that sum results in a fraction of .50 or more, the fraction shall be rounded to the higher whole number; if less than .50, the fraction shall be rounded to the lower whole number.
- 21.1.7.5 Step credit shall be granted for time spent on paid sabbatical leave.

21.2 Benefits

- 21.2.1 <u>District Contributions</u>
 - 21.2.1.1 The medical benefits will be provided by participating in the PERS Health Benefits Program, PEMHCA (Public Employees' Medical and Hospital Care Act). The District will contribute a minimum amount each month per eligible full-time unit member for an approved PERS health plan option, as specified by Government Code Section 22892. This amount shall be the District's basic medical benefits contribution. This basic amount will be increased on July 1 of each year as required by the Government Code.

In addition, beginning with the effective dates listed below, the District will pay an amount which, when added to the above basic contribution, will not exceed the following maximum monthly payment for each unit

member's	medical,	dental,	and	vision	benefits	prorated
based upon	the unit	t membe	er's fu	all-time	e equivale	ent (FTE)
status:						

Effective	January 1, 2014*	Effective	Effective January 1, 2016			
Individual:		Individual:				
Medical:	742.72	Medical:	746.47			
Dental	106.15	Dental	106.15			
Vision	<u>\$ 11.82</u>	Vision	<u>\$ 11.82</u>			
	\$ 860.69		\$ 864.44			
Individual Pl	us One:	Individual	Individual Plus One:			
Medical	1,485.44	Medical	1,492.94			
Dental	106.15	Dental	\$ 106.15			
Vision	<u>\$ 11.82</u>	Vision	<u>\$ 11.82</u>			
	\$ 1,603.41		\$ 1,610.91			
Family: Unit Members Hired Before July 1, 2012						
Medical	1,759.64	Medical	1,813.75			
Dental	106.15	Dental	\$ 106.15			
Vision	<u>\$ 11.82</u>	Vision	<u>\$ 11.82</u>			
	1,877.61		1,931.72			
Family: Unit Members Hired on or After July 1, 2012						
-	nuary 1, 2013	•	-			
Medical	\$ 1,556.30		\$ 1,589.60			
Dental	106.15	Dental	\$ 106.15			
Vision	<u>\$ 11.82</u>	Vision	<u>\$ 11.82</u>			
	1,674.27		1,707.57			

*no changes to District contributions from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015.

21.2.1.2 Family Medical Premiums for Unit Members Hired Before July 1, 2012:

Effective January 1, 2016, the District's maximum monthly contribution toward medical benefits shall increase by sixty-five percent (65%) of the difference between the published CalPERS Kaiser "Employee Plus Family" rate as it existed on January 2015

Effective January 1, 2017, the District's maximum monthly contribution toward medical benefits shall increase by sixty-five percent (65%) of the difference between the published CalPERS Kaiser "Employee Plus Family" rate as it existed on January 2016. 21.2.1.3 Family Medical Premiums for Unit Members Hired on or After July 1, 2012:

Effective January 1, 2016, the District's maximum monthly contribution toward medical benefits shall increase by forty percent (40%) of the difference between the published CalPERS Kaiser "Employee Plus Family" rate as they existed on January 1, 2015.

Effective January 1, 2017, the District's maximum monthly contribution toward medical benefits shall increase by forty percent (40%) of the difference between the published CalPERS Kaiser "Employee Plus Family" rate as they existed on January 1, 2016.

- 21.2.1.4 The District will pay the full cost of the dental and vision insurance premiums through June 30, 2017.
- 21.2.1.5 Any unit member on the salary schedule as half time or more prior to 1991/92 will continue to receive full benefits.
- 21.2.1.6 In the absence of an agreement to increase the District's maximum monthly contribution toward benefit premiums beginning January 1, 2018, the individual unit member will be responsible for paying the premium costs in excess of the District's January 1, 2017, contribution.
- 21.2.1.7 Beginning with January 1, 2016 payroll period, each unit member will cease to pay \$350 per year, prorated by pay period, into an irrevocable trust fund for the sole purpose of prefunding retiree medical benefits.
- 21.2.2 At the Governing Board's discretion, full time unit members who subsequently work part time may receive full medical and dental coverage for up to two years under the following circumstances:
 - 21.2.2.1 Personal or family medical reasons.
 - 21.2.2.2 Child rearing.
 - 21.2.2.3 The Governing Board may consider granting full benefits for other reasons upon the unit member's request.

- 21.2.3 Prior to instituting any change from the PEMHCA, the District shall meet and negotiate with the Association. The District will ensure that any carriers selected will provide coverage for domestic partners, as defined in subsection 19.1.1.4 of this Agreement.
- 21.2.4 Unit members employed with the District on or before June 30, 2003, who show proof of other comparable medical benefits may elect to receive cash in lieu of benefits to a maximum of \$438 per month, which may be placed in a tax sheltered annuity to the extent allowed by the IRS. Application shall be made in accordance with District procedures.

21.3 <u>Leave Coverage</u>

A unit member on paid leave shall receive the same health and welfare benefits as he/she would receive while on regular working status. A unit member on unpaid leave shall be entitled to continue health and welfare coverage at his or her own expense, if permitted by the insurance carrier, by pre-paying the premiums quarterly.

21.4 Full Year Coverage

All unit members working a full school year for the District shall receive a full year (12 months) of medical and dental benefits.

21.5 <u>Voluntary Medicare Contributions</u>

- 21.5.1 The District agrees to allow unit members to elect individually whether they shall become eligible for Medicare coverage as provided for by Government Code Section 22009.03, et seq.
- 21.5.2 A certificated employee who elects to become part of Medicare must still be an employee when the process is completed to receive credit for Medicare quarters that the employee might have earned from the effective date.
- 21.5.3 All certificated unit members working half time or more shall be eligible to elect to become part of Medicare.

ARTICLE 22: RETIREMENT

- 22.1 During the period of District participation in the CalPERS medical benefits plan, unit members retiring may, by request, continue their participation in the medical insurance coverage by making contributions according to CalPERS regulations. And if the insurers agree, a retired unit member may continue in the dental and vision insurance by making payments as required by the District.
- 22.2 For those unit members employed by the District before June 30, 2007, in addition to the District's contribution provided under participation in the CalPERS medical benefits plan, unit members retiring after the equivalent of 25 years of full-time District service as certificated employees shall be provided three years of medical benefits, up to the number of dependents at the time of retirement, paid by the District in the same dollar amount as unit members in active service with the District.

If retirement occurs on or after July 1, 2016, the medical premium amount will be capped at the rate that exists at the retirement date.

For those 65 years of age and older who have the equivalent of 25 years of full-time District service as certificated employees and are eligible for Medicare, the District will pay for three years of the Medicare Supplement and the Senior Medical Program. Any amount paid to CalPERS for medical benefits shall be included as part of this contribution.

- 22.3 A unit member's written notification to the Governing Board that he/she intends to retire shall remain irrevocable once it is delivered to the Governing Board or the Superintendent.
- 22.4 Unit members may meet with the Superintendent or his/her designee to develop non-precedent setting, individual retirement plans.
 - 22.4.1 Unit members may have representation at such meetings.
 - 22.4.2 An individual retirement plan will become effective upon the unit member's submission of a written resignation and having both the resignation and the retirement plan accepted by the Governing Board.

22.5 Early Retirement

- 22.5.1 Early Retirement Incentive Programs are limited to 10% of the certificated staff, unless the District chooses to make the programs available to a larger percentage. Those having the greatest seniority will receive priority for entrance into the programs. Approval will be granted by the Governing Board upon its determination that the District's educational program will benefit thereby. A unit member may participate in only one of the three options consultancy, medical benefits only, or incentive payment. For the purposes of this provision, sabbatical and family and medical leaves shall not constitute a break in services.
- 22.5.2 <u>Options</u>
 - 22.5.2.1 Option I: Consultancy

22.5.2.1.1.1 <u>Eligibility</u>

- Be 55-62 years of age by July 1 of the year of entrance into the program.
- Complete a minimum of 10 years of fulltime service in the District immediately preceding acceptance into the program.
- Resign from District position to enter the program.
- 22.5.2.1.2 The annual compensation will be \$6,000 and will be provided in exchange for consulting services of 30 days annually in accordance with the contract. (See subsection 22.4.2.1.4 below.) Unit members participating in the program shall receive medical benefits paid by the District in the same amount as unit members in active service with the District.
- 22.5.2.1.3 Once a unit member has entered the consultancy program, he/she may not terminate his/her participation and re-enter the consultancy program at any time in the future.
- 22.5.2.1.4 The agreement between the District and the individual applying for the consultancy program shall consist of a formal contract

renewable each year upon satisfactory completion of the duties, for the maximum five-year period or until age 65, whichever comes first. In the event the candidate is unable to fulfill his/her contractual obligations, the annual contract shall be prorata on the basis of the work performed.

22.5.2.1.5 The unit member and District shall mutually agree to consultant activities.

22.5.2.2 Option II: Medical Benefits Only

22.5.2.2.1 <u>Eligibility</u>

- Be 55-62 years of age by July 1 of the year of entrance into the program.
- Effective July 1, 2011, the eligibility standard for receipt of retiree medical benefits is (20) twenty years of District service. This 20-year eligibility requirement shall apply to the CalPERS minimum retiree medical payment.
- Employees with part-time service who have worked for the District for a minimum of twenty (20) years will receive prorated benefits based on their average district years of service (FTE) benefits upon retirement, unless their part-time service amounts to twenty percent (20%) or less of their total service in the District in which instance there shall be no proration of benefits
- The following eligibility standards will apply in lieu of the 20-year service rule for unit members employed by the District on or before June 30, 2011:
 - Ten (10) years of District service at the time of retirement for any unit member who on July 1, 2011, is at least age fifty (50); and

- Fifteen (15) years of District service at the time of retirement for any unit member who on July 1, 2011, is age forty-five (45) to fortynine (49).
- Resign from District position to enter the program.
- 22.5.2.2.2 Unit member participating in the program shall receive medical benefits paid by the District according to the following:
 - If retirement occurs on or before June 30, 2016 the premium rate will remain the same as unit members in active service.
 - If retirement occurs on or after July1, 2016, the premium amount will be capped at the rate that exists at the retirement date.

Such unit members may, by request, and provided insurance companies concur, continue their participation in the dental and vision insurance coverage by making quarterly contributions to the District.

22.5.2.2.3 Once a unit member has entered the Medical Benefits Program, he/she may not terminate his/her participation and re-enter the Medical Benefits Program at any time in the future.

22.5.2.3 Option III: Incentive Payment

22.5.2.3.1 <u>Eligibility</u>

- Be 55-62 years of age by July 1 of the year of entrance into the program.
- Complete a minimum of 10 years of fulltime service in the District immediately preceding acceptance into the program.

- Resign from District position to enter the program.
- 22.5.2.3.3 Unit members participating in this program shall receive a lump sum payment of \$30,000. This payment may be made directly to the unit member or may fund an annuity. No fringe benefits shall be available to such employees.

22.6 <u>Reduced Workload Assignment (Willie Brown Act)</u>

- 22.6.1 <u>Eligibility</u>
 - 22.6.1.1 Unit members who have reached the age of 55 and who have been in full-time service with the District for 10 years, of which the preceding five years were full-time employment.
 - 22.6.1.2 To be eligible for participation, participants will submit a letter of resignation with an intended resignation date that would fall within their agreed upon period of participation.
 - 22.6.1.3 For the purposes of these provisions, sabbaticals and other approved leaves of absence shall not constitute a break in service.
- 22.6.2 <u>Services</u>

Minimum part-time employment for purposes of this policy shall be the equivalent of one-half of the days of service required by a fulltime contract. This "one-half of the days" may be satisfied by working full-time for one-half of the required days of service.

- 22.6.3 <u>Compensation</u>
 - 22.6.3.1 The salary shall be pro-rated based on the salary s/he would be earning had s/he remained in full-time employment.
 - 22.6.3.2 The health and welfare benefits shall be the same as if they were full-time employees and the unit member shall retain all other rights and benefits as if s/he had remained full-time, including receiving the same medical, dental, and vision benefits as paid for unit members until age 65.

- 22.6.3.3 Advancement on the salary schedule shall be as though they were full-time employees.
- 22.6.3.4 The unit member and the District shall contribute to the STRS the amount that would have been contributed if the unit member had remained as a full-time employee.
- 22.6.3.5 Sick leave of absence shall be prorated.
- 22.6.4 <u>Terms</u>
 - 22.6.4.1 Participation is for up to 10 years or to age 65, whichever comes first.
 - 22.6.4.2 Under the intent of this option, participants will not be allowed to return to full-time certificated employment in the District.
 - 22.6.4.3 This option shall be exercised at the request of the unit member and can be revoked only with the mutual consent of the District and the unit member.
 - 22.6.4.4 Denial of the application by the principal, Superintendent, or the Governing Board shall be based upon reasons of additional cost to the District and/or program considerations, and shall include a written statement of the evidence upon which the denial is based.

ARTICLE 23: EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE FOR 2009-2010

23.1 Early Retirement Incentive

23.1.1 <u>Eligibility</u>

A unit member who tenders an irrevocable resignation of retirement under STRS or PERS no later than March 15, 2010, and who has a minimum of ten years of service with the District, will receive a retirement stipend as set forth below.

- 23.1.2 <u>Benefit</u>
 - 23.1.2.1 If four or more bargaining unit members tender retirement resignations by the required date, the payment will be \$30,000 plus the medical benefit set forth in Option II in subsection 22.5.2.2 of this Agreement, or

\$40,000 if the individual is over the age of 62 and therefore not eligible for the medical benefit in Option II.

23.1.3 <u>Payment Options</u>

The payment options for retirement incentives will include:

- A lump sum payment at the time of retirement; or
- A purchase of an Annuity for life through Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS).

ARTICLE 24: RESIGNATIONS

24.1 A unit member's written notification to the Governing Board that he/she intends to resign shall remain irrevocable once it is delivered to the Governing Board or Superintendent.

ARTICLE 25: COMPLAINTS

- 25.1 <u>Exclusions</u>
 - 25.1.1 <u>Discrimination Laws</u>

This article does not apply to sexual harassment complaints, or complaints of discrimination based on race, religion, national origin, sex, age, marital status, physical handicap, or sexual orientation, which are subject to Board policy and state and federal law, or complaints covered by law under the District's Uniform Complaint Procedure.

25.2 Complaints By Parents, Guardians, Or Other District Staff

25.2.1 <u>District Complaint Procedures</u>

In order to promote fair and constructive communications, any person wishing to pursue a complaint about a unit member shall be encouraged by the District and the Association to first meet with the unit member in order to informally address and resolve the complaint.

All formal complaints by parents, guardians, 6-8 grade students, or other District employees against a unit member must be in writing and follow either the District Uniform Complaint Procedure regarding program, or the District Miscellaneous Complaint Procedure regarding the actions of the District employee. The District must notify the unit member by providing a copy of the complaint and the appropriate Complaint Procedure within five (5) business days of receipt of the complaint. Any change in the policies that affect working conditions for unit members will not be made unless the District first provides the Association with notice of the proposed change.

- 25.2.2 <u>Investigation Procedures</u>
 - 25.2.2.1 Before the onset of the formal investigation, the unit member will be notified of the nature of the complaint.
 - 25.2.2.2 No adverse action against a unit member shall be based on any initial complaint or allegation.
 - 25.2.2.3 The District may take appropriate action based on the results of an investigation conducted according to the established District complaint procedures.
 - 25.2.2.4 Any investigation relied upon by the District shall require, at a minimum, that the unit member be made aware of the nature of the complaint, that the unit member is provided the opportunity to meet with the investigator and provide evidence, and that the unit member be entitled to representation during any investigatory interview, and the investigator make findings and provides written conclusions to the unit member. These requirements do not in any manner limit the unit member's right to otherwise challenge the imposition of a disciplinary action by the District.

25.2.3 <u>Response To Report And Placement In Personnel File</u>

All documents relating to complaints shall be placed in a separate file and not in the unit member's personnel file, unless adverse action is taken as a result of the investigation. The unit member shall then have the right to prepare a written response to the investigator's report, and attach the response to the official administration copy, within 10 working days of receipt of a copy of the investigator's report.

25.3 Protocol For Parent Interaction With Certificated Personnel

After adoption by the Governing Board, the District's protocol regarding interaction between unit members and parents/guardians, shall be posted at each school site and shall be distributed each year to all parents and guardians. The District will review the protocols annually with each school staff. The protocol shall be attached for information as Appendix F.

ARTICLE 26: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

26.1 <u>Savings Provisions</u>

If any provision of this Agreement is held to be contrary to law by a court of competent jurisdiction, that provision will not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions will continue in full force and effect; however, no provisions in this Agreement shall be construed to result in an illegal discriminatory act based on race, creed, sex, or national origin.

26.2 <u>Superseding Provision</u>

This Agreement constitutes a full and complete understanding and agreement between the parties, arrived at after meeting and negotiating in good faith. This Agreement shall supersede all District policies, contracts, or memoranda of understanding between the parties to the extent they are inconsistent with this Agreement.

MILL VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MILL VALLEY TEACHERS ASSOCIATION

/S/

For The District

/S/

For The Association

Dated:_____

Dated:_____

APPENDIX A MILL VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT CERTIFICATED ANNUAL SALARY SCHEDULE 2015-16

YEARS OF SERVICE	I BA	II BA + 45 or MA	III BA + 60 or MA + 15	IV BA + 75 or MA + 30
1	54,049	54,049	54,052	54,914
2	54,049	56,714	58,517	59,418
3	55,819	58,278	61,986	65,754
4	57,613	60,714	64,458	68,188
5	59,469	63,163	66,918	70,672
6	61,935	65,652	69,399	73,126
7	64,388	68,114	71,889	75,587
8	67,039	70,607	74,340	78,054
9	69,445	73,081	76,798	80,542
10	72,121	75,640	82,182	83,968
12				86,869
14				89,770
16				92,673
18				95,574
20				98,478

INITIAL PLACEMENT

The Superintendent or Superintendent designee shall make the initial placement, granting a maximum of 14 years credit for prior experience. In so doing, s/he shall grant one year's credit for each year served as a credentialed teacher in a public school, a college, or an accredited private school. Credit will be given for service in the Armed Forces if the teacher was required to leave a teaching position to serve.

Work Year: 186 Days

PhD/EdD - \$1,000 per year National Board Certification - \$1,000 per year Range IV, Step 24 Longevity - \$3,000 per year

SALARY ADJUSTMENTS

3% Salary Increase effective 7/1/2015

Adopted by Governing Board: 11/12/2015

APPENDIX A1 MILL VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT CERTIFICATED ANNUAL SALARY SCHEDULE 2016-17

YEARS OF SERVICE	l BA	II BA + 45 or MA	III BA + 60 or MA + 15	IV BA + 75 or MA + 30
1	55,130	55,130	55,133	56,012
2	55,130	57,848	59,687	60,606
3	56,935	59,444	63,226	67,069
4	58,765	61,928	65,747	69,552
5	60,658	64,426	68,256	72,085
6	63,174	66,965	70,787	74,589
7	65,676	69,476	73,327	77,099
8	68,380	72,019	75,827	79,615
9	70,834	74,543	78,334	82,153
10	73,563	77,153	83,826	85,647
12				88,606
14				91,565
16				94,526
18				97,485
20				100,448

INITIAL PLACEMENT

The Superintendent or Superintendent designee shall make the initial placement, granting a maximum of 14 years credit for prior experience. In so doing, s/he shall grant one year's credit for each year served as a credentialed teacher in a public school, a college, or an accredited private school. Credit will be given for service in the Armed Forces if the teacher was required to leave a teaching position to serve.

Work Year: 186 Days

PhD/EdD - \$1,000 per year National Board Certification - \$1,000 per year Range IV, Step 24 Longevity - \$3,000 per year

SALARY ADJUSTMENTS

2% Salary Increase effective 7/1/2016

Adopted by Governing Board: 11/12/2015

APPENDIX B MILL VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT MIDDLE SCHOOL COUNSELOR ANNUAL SALARY SCHEDULE 2015-16

YEARS OF SERVICE	I BA	II BA + 45 or MA	III BA + 60 or MA + 15	IV BA + 75 or MA + 30
1	56,428	57,397	58,370	59,346
2	58,370	61,290	63,238	64,211
3	60,316	62,977	66,988	71,059
4	62,260	65,610	69,656	73,689
5	64,268	68,255	72,316	76,368
6	66,927	70,946	74,995	79,021
7	69,582	73,608	77,686	81,681
8	72,443	76,298	80,336	84,349
9	75,048	78,973	82,991	87,038
10	77,937	81,741	88,809	90,736
12				93,862
14				96,989
16				100,117
18				103,239
20				106,368

INITIAL PLACEMENT

The Superintendent or Superintendent designee shall make the initial placement, granting a maximum of 14 years credit for prior experience. In so doing, s/he shall grant one year's credit for each year served as a credentialed teacher in a public school, a college, or an accredited private school. Credit will be given for service in the Armed Forces if the teacher was required to leave a teaching position to serve.

Work Year: 201 Days

Range IV, Step 24 Longevity - \$3,000 per year - part of base salary

SALARY ADJUSTMENTS

3% Salary Increase effective 7/1/2015

Adopted by Governing Board:

APPENDIX B1 MILL VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT MIDDLE SCHOOL COUNSELOR ANNUAL SALARY SCHEDULE 2016-17

YEARS OF SERVICE	I BA	II BA + 45 or MA	III BA + 60 or MA + 15	IV BA + 75 or MA + 30
1	57,557	58,545	59,537	60,533
2	59,537	62,516	64,503	65,495
3	61,522	64,237	68,328	72,480
4	63,505	66,922	71,049	75,163
5	65,553	69,620	73,762	77,895
6	68,266	72,365	76,495	80,601
7	70,974	75,080	79,240	83,315
8	73,892	77,824	81,943	86,036
9	76,549	80,552	84,651	88,779
10	79,496	83,376	90,585	92,551
12				95,739
14				98,929
16				102,119
18				105,304
20				108,495

INITIAL PLACEMENT

The Superintendent or Superintendent designee shall make the initial placement, granting a maximum of 14 years credit for prior experience. In so doing, s/he shall grant one year's credit for each year served as a credentialed teacher in a public school, a college, or an accredited private school. Credit will be given for service in the Armed Forces if the teacher was required to leave a teaching position to serve.

Work Year: 201 Days

Range IV, Step 24 Longevity - \$3,000 per year - part of base salary

SALARY ADJUSTMENTS

2% Salary Increase effective 7/1/2016

Adopted by Governing Board:

APPENDIX C: CERTIFICATED STIPENDS

STIPENDS TO BE FUNDED				
Position	Stipend			
K-8 Teacher Leaders	\$2000			
Outdoor Ed	\$200 / night, max of 3 nights			
MS Dept Head	\$2000 / year			
MS Graduation Coordinator	\$1000 / event			
Private School Recommendation Letters	\$10 / per student, except as authorized by the Superintendent for certain multiple applications			
Elementary Conflict Manager Supervision	\$300 / per teacher / year, max of two per site			
Advisor to Student Council	\$500 / site / year			
STIPENDS TO BE FUNDED CONTINGENT UPON RECEIPT OF DONATIONS				
Position	Stipend			
MS WEB Coordinator	\$4000 / year			
MS Dance Chaperone	\$65 / event			
MS Director of MS Play (ticket sales)	\$4000 / event			
MS Assistant Director of MS Play (ticket sales)	\$2000 / event			
MS Yearbook Director	\$2500 / year			
MS Student Newspaper Coordinator	\$2000 per year			
MS Intramurals Coach	\$670 / season			
MS Mathletes Coach	\$1500 / year /site			
MS Coordinator of After School Sports	\$2500			
MS Musical – Supervision	\$65 / event			
MS Coach of After School Sports	\$500 / authorized team			
MS Student Leadership	\$2000 per year / per teacher, max of two			
MS Spelling Bee Coordinator	\$500			
MS World Savvy Challenge	\$2000 / year			
Green Team Leader	\$500 / elementary school			

Mill Valley School District Student/Teacher Calendar 2015-16 Wednesday dismissal: K-5s 1:45; Middle School 1:22

	Wednesday dismissal: K-5s 1:45; Middle School 1:22			Board Approved: 12 12 2012				
	М	т	w	тн	F	TeacherDays(Student Days)	Important Dat	Board Approved: 12-12-2013 es to Note
UGUST	3	4	5	6	7			
	10	11	12	13	14		8/24	Staff Dev Day
	17	18	19	20	21		8/25	Teacher Work Day
	[24]	{25}	26	27	28		8/26	First Day of School
	31	(-)			-	6(4)		
EPTEMBER		1	2	3	4			
	(7)	8	9	10	11		9/7	Labor Day (no school)
	14	15	16	17	18		9/9	K-5 Back to School Night
	21	22	23	24	25		9/16	Middle School Back to School Night
CTOBER	28	29	30	1	2	21(21)		
CIOBER	5	6	7	8	2			
	12	13	, 14	15	16		10/19	Staff Dev Day
	[19]	20	21	22	23		10/13	Stan Dev Day
	26	27	28	29	30	22(21)		
IOVEMBER	20	3	4	5	6		11/9 - 11/20	K-5 Parent Conferences^
	9^	10^	(11)	12^	13^		11/11	Veteran's Day (no school)
	16^	17^	18^	19^	20^		11/20	End of 1st Trimester
	23	/24	25	26	<u>/27</u>			Thanksgiving Recess
	30	/	, - \	/ \	/ `	15(15)		
ECEMBER		1	2	3	4			
	7	8	9	10	11			
	14	15	16	17	18			
	21	22	23	24	25	14(14)	12/21 - 1/1	Winter Recess
DEC/JAN	28	29	30	<u>31</u>	<u>1</u>			
ANUARY	4	5	6	7	8			
	11	12	13	14	15		1/18	Martin Luther King Jr. Day (no school)
	(18)	[19]	20	21	22		1/19	Staff Dev Day
	25	26	27	28	29	19(18)		
EBRUARY	1	2	3	4	5			
	8	9	10	11	12		2/15	President's Day (no school)
	(15)	/16	/17	/18	/19		2/16 - 2/19	Recess Days
	22	23	24	25	26			
	29			-		16(16)		
MARCH	7	1	2	3	4		0/44	Find of Oright Tripperson
	7	8	9	10	11		3/11	End of 2nd Trimester
	[14]	15	16	17	18		3/14	Staff Dev Day
	21 28	22 29	23 30	24 31	25	23(22)		
APRIL	20	29	30	31	1	23(22)		
	4	5	6	7	8			
	11	12	13	14	15		4/11 - 4/15	Spring Recess
	18	19	20	21	22			
	25	26	27	28	29	16(16)		
IAY	2	3	4	5	6			
	9	10	11	12	13			
	16	17	18	19	20		5/25	Open House - Elem Schools
	23	24	25	26	27		5/30	Memorial Day (no school)
	(30)	31				21(21)		
UNE			1	2	3		6/1	Open House - Middle School
	6	7	8	9	10		6/16	Last Day of School
	13	14	15	<u>16</u>	{17}		6/17	Teacher Work Day
	20	21	22	23	24			
	27	28	29	30		13(12)		

O Legal Holiday \triangle Recess Day [] Staff Dev. Day

{ } Teacher Work Day

^ K-5 Conferences; Min. Day schedule

*6/16 Dismissal at 12:30pm

Total Days of Instruction: 180 Total Teacher Days of Work: 186

APPENDIX E: EVALUATION FORMS

Pilot 2013-14

MILL VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT EVALUATION PLANNING CONFERENCE FORM (Must Be Completed By October 15 for those teachers beginning any evaluation cycle)

	Teacher:		Date of Conference:
	Evaluation Plan	or	IIA or IIB
	Content standard focus		
	Professional Teaching Standard(s) [select and ci include additional standards to those selected]	rcle	at least two below. Please note: the evaluation may
1.	 Engaging And Supporting All Students In Learning a. Connecting students' prior knowledge, life experiences, and interests with learning goals. b. Using a variety of instructional strategies and resources to respond to students' diverse needs. c. Facilitating learning experiences that promote autonomy, interaction, and choice. d. Engaging students in problem solving, critical thinking, and other activities that make subject matter meaningful. e. Promoting self-directed, reflective learning for all students. 	2.	 Creating And Maintaining Effective Environments For Student Learning Creating a physical environment that engages all students. Establishing a climate that promotes fairness and respect. Promoting social development and group responsibility. Establishing and maintaining standards for student behavior. Planning and implementing classroom procedures and routines that support student learning. Using instructional time effectively.
3.	 Understanding And Organizing Subject Matter For Student Learning a. Demonstrating knowledge of subject matter content and student development. b. Organizing curriculum to support student understanding of subject matter. c. Interrelating ideas and information within and across subject matter areas. d. Developing student understanding through instructional strategies that are appropriate to the subject matter. e. Using materials, resources, and technologies to make subject matter accessible to students. 	4.	 Planning Instruction And Designing Learning Experiences For All Students a. Drawing on and valuing students' backgrounds, interests, and developmental learning needs. b. Establishing and articulating goals for student learning. c. Developing and sequencing instructional activities and materials for student learning. d. Designing short-term and long-term plans to foster student learning. e. Modifying instructional plans to adjust for student needs.
5.	 Assessing Student Learning a. Establishing and communicating learning goals for all students. b. Collecting and using multiple sources of information to assess student learning. c. Involving and guiding all students in assessing their own learning. d. Using the results of assessments to guide instruction. e. Communicating with students, families, and other audiences about student progress. 	6.	 Developing As A Professional Educator Reflecting on teaching practice and planning professional development. Establishing professional goals and pursuing opportunities to grow professionally. Working with communities to improve professional practice. Working with families to improve professional practice. Working with colleagues to improve professional practice. Balancing professional responsibilities and maintaining motivation.

Pilot 2013-14

Appendix E

MILL VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT EVALUATION PLANNING CONFERENCE FORM

(Must Be Completed By October 15 for those teachers beginning any evaluation cycle)

Comments:

Evaluator's Signature:	Teacher's Signature:			
Date:	Date:			
Timelines <u>All Plans</u> – Planning conference – By Octobe 	er 15.			
 Plan I – Two rounds of pre-observation conference, observation and post-observation conference – between 				

- November 1st and March 1st. Final summative evaluation and conference By May 1st. (Probationary and Temporary)
- Plan IIA One pre-observation conference, observation and post-observation conference By April 1st. Final •
- summative evaluation and conference By May 1st. (Permanent Staff Only) <u>Plan IIB</u> Teachers submit Description of Plan to administrator By November 1st. Teachers submit a summative report to administrator for feedback By April 15. Final summative evaluation and conference By May 1st. (Permanent Staff Only)
- See contract for teacher's summative report needing support/improvement plan.

Pilot 2013-14

MILL VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Appendix E

EVALUATION FORM FOR TEACHERS ON PLAN I OR IIA

Teacher:	Evaluator:		School Year:	
School:	Grade/Subject		Status:	Temporary – Plan I
				Probationary – Plan I
Date of First Observation/Conference		1		Permanent – Plan IIA
Date of Second Observation/Conference (Required Only For Probationary & Temporary) Date of Summative Conference		 /		

 MS = Meets Standards
 PE = Progress (toward standards) Evident
 NE = (Progress toward standards) Not Evident*

 NI = Needs Improvement*
 U = Unsatisfactory*
 "Commentary Required"

First Obs.	Second Obs.	Summative Conference	
			1. Engaging And Supporting All Students In Learning
			2. Creating And Maintaining Effective Environments For Student Learning
			 Understanding And Organizing Subject Matter For Student Learning
			 Planning Instruction And Designing Learning Experiences For All Students
			5. Assessing Student Learning
			 Developing As A Professional Educator
Observati	ion 1 comments:		
Observati	ion 2 comments	(required only fo	or Probationary and Temporary):

Pilot 2013-14 Summative comments: Optional Teacher Comments (Date any comments. Additional comments may be attached.):

Evaluator's Signature:*	Teacher's Signature:*
Date:	Date:

*Signatures obtained at summative evaluation conference. Teacher's signature acknowledges only receipt of the document.

The teacher's performance shows consistent growth toward the Teaching Standards and satisfactory performance in Education Code 44662 areas.

The teacher's performance does not show consistent growth toward the Teaching Standards nor satisfactory performance in Education Code 44662 areas. A Plan III Support Plan is recommended and will be implemented.

Timelines

- All Plans Planning conference By October 15.
- Plan I Two rounds of pre-observation conference, observation and post-observation conference between November 1st and March 1st. Final summative evaluation and conference - By May 1st. (Probationary and Temporary)
- Plan IIA One pre-observation conference, observation and post-observation conference By April 1st. Final summative evaluation and conference - By May 1st. (Permanent Staff Only)
- Plan IIB Teachers submit Description of Plan to administrator By November 1st. Teachers submit a summative report to administrator for feedback - By April 15. Final summative evaluation and conference - By May 1st. (Permanent Staff Only)
- See contract for teacher's summative report needing support/improvement plan. ٠

Pilot 2013-14

Mill Valley School District PLAN IIB PROFESSIONAL GROWTH PLAN FOR PERMANENT TEACHERS

Teacher: _____

Team Members: ____

DESCRIPTION OF PLAN (Due to Administrator by November 1)

Teaching Standard(s) to be addressed	Activities/ Timeline	Evidence (Please attach supporting documentation)

TEACHER SUMMATIVE REPORT (Due to Administrator by April 15): 1) Describe the nature of your professional development work (reading professional books, meetings with colleagues, observations, outside workshops, videos, etc.).

Pilot 2013-14

Mill Valley School District PLAN IIB PROFESSIONAL GROWTH PLAN FOR PERMANENT TEACHERS

2) What aspect of your professional development work was most beneficial to improving your teaching? Why? What are some key learning points that you have gained from this work?
3) What impact do you believe your professional development work has had on your students' learning of the content standards selected? What evidence can you share that demonstrates this learning?

EVALUATOR COMMENTS:

Pilot 2013-14

Appendix E

3

Mill Valley School District PLAN IIB PROFESSIONAL GROWTH PLAN FOR PERMANENT TEACHERS

The teacher's performance shows consistent growth toward the Teaching Standards and satisfactory performance in Education Code 44662 areas.

The teacher's performance does not show consistent growth toward the Teaching Standards nor satisfactory performance in Education Code 44662 areas. A Plan III Support Plan is recommended and will be implemented.

Evaluator's Signature:*	Teacher's Signature:*
Date:	Date:

*Signatures obtained at summative evaluation conference. Teacher's signature acknowledges only receipt of the document.

Timelines

- •
- All Plans
 Planning conference By October 15.

 Plan 1
 Two rounds of pre-observation conference, observation and post-observation conference between November 1st and March 1st. Final summative evaluation and conference By May 1st. (Probationary and Temporary)

 Plan 1/A One pre-observation conference, observation and post-observation conference By April 1st. Final summative evaluation conference, observation and post-observation conference By April 1st. Final summative evaluation and conference By May 1st. (Permanent Staff Only)

 Plan 1/B Teachers submit Description of Plan to administrator By November 1st. Teachers submit a summative report to administrator for feedback By April 15. Final summative evaluation and conference By May 1st. (Permanent Staff Only)

 See contract for teacher's summative report needing support/improvement plan.

Mill Valley School District Evaluation Form Plan III: Support Plan			
	Site:		
Name:	Date:		
Teaching Standards to be addressed:			
Proposed Timeline (Duration not to exceed 18 weeks. Fe not less than each 6 weeks.)	edback and/or observations		
Proposed plan/support to be provided:			
Feedback and/or Observation Notes:	Date:		
Feedback and/or Observation Conference Notes:	Date:		
Evidence of satisfactory progress toward completion of plan:			
Evidence of unsatisfactory progress toward completion of plan:			
Summary:	Date:		
Teacher Comment:			
Administrator:	Date:		
Representative:	Date:		
Teacher:	Date:		
 Teacher to return to standard evaluation plan Teacher to continue on support plan Teacher to be placed on Evaluation Plan IV: Unsatisfactory 			

Plan III

Page 2

Completed at formal observation year.

(Stull Bill evaluation at year of formal evaluation)

Stull Bill

- Progress of students toward established District academic content standards as measured by local assessment tools and the state criterion referenced assessment
- Instructional strategies and techniques
- Adherence to curriculum objective
- Establishment and maintenance of a suitable learning environment

Teaching Standards

- Engaging and supporting all students in learning
- Creating and maintaining effective environments for student learning
- Understanding and organizing subject matter for student learning
- Planning instruction and designing learning experiences for all students
- Assessing student learning
- Developing as a professional educator

Unsatisfactory in:

- Instruction Strategies
- Subject Matter Knowledge

Mill Valley School District Evaluation Form Unsatisfactory Plan IV			
	Site:		
Name:	Date:		
Teaching Standards to be addressed: (include Stull area)			
Proposed Timeline (Duration minimum of 9 weeks. Obser weeks.)	vations not less than each 5		
 Proposed plan/support to be provided: 			
Observation Notes:	Date:		
Observation Conference Notes:	Date:		
Evidence of satisfactory progress toward completion of plan:			
Evidence of unsatisfactory progress toward completion of plan:			
Summary:	Date:		
Teacher Comment:			
Administrator:	Date:		
Representative:	Date:		
Teacher:	Date:		

Plan IV

Stull Bill

- Progress of students toward established District academic content standards as measured by local assessment tools and the state criterion referenced assessment
- Instructional strategies and techniques
- Adherence to curriculum objective
- Establishment and maintenance of a suitable learning environment

Teaching Standards

- Engaging and supporting all students in learning
- Creating and maintaining effective environments for student learning
- Understanding and organizing subject matter for student learning
- Planning instruction and designing learning experiences for all students
- Assessing student learning
- Developing as a professional educator

Unsatisfactory in:

- Instruction Strategies
- Subject Matter Knowledge

APPENDIX F: PROTOCOL FOR PARENT INTERACTION WITH CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL

Appendix F

Mill Valley ESD Administrative Regulation

AR 1270 Community Relations

Protocol For Parent Interaction With School Personnel

The Governing Board of the Mill Valley School District is keenly aware that a student's education is a collaborative effort between educators and parents. The Board therefore encourages an open and honest dialogue at all times. A cornerstone to any constructive discussion is that all parties be respectful to all other parties. This protocol is not intended to deprive any person of his/her right to freedom of expression, but only to maintain, to the extent possible and reasonable, a safe and orderly environment.

Classroom Volunteers

Classroom volunteers should set schedules ahead of time with teachers. If for some reason volunteers cannot fulfill their scheduled time, the school secretary should be notified so that teachers may be informed of any absences.

Volunteers are to implement instructions given by the teacher. Volunteer time is not to be used for volunteers to discuss their own or another child's progress. For purposes of confidentiality, the volunteer shall not discuss any student's behavior or progress, the teacher, or things they have been privy to in the classroom.

Communication

Any concerns regarding a teacher's practice should be openly and respectfully addressed with the teacher. If no progress towards resolution is made, an appointment with parties involved should be scheduled with the site administrator.

Parents/guardians are encouraged to appropriately communicate with school staff. This may be done via e-mail, voice mail, and/or notes. Teachers may indicate a preference in these methods. Teachers are allowed two working days to respond to any reasonable communication.

Teachers have the right to make a complaint to their administrator if they feel that any communication is disrespectful.

Meetings with Teachers

Meetings should be scheduled at mutually agreeable times. One may not interrupt instruction, recess, duty free lunch times, or prep time to address and/or discuss a

concern. Teacher/parent discussions should be done privately, away from students, other parents, and other staff members. A teacher has the right to request that the administrator attend any meetings or conferences.

If during any meeting (e.g. parent conference, phone call, SST/IEP, formal meeting), a person uses obscenities or speaks in a demanding, loud, insulting, and/or demeaning manner, the site administrator, teacher or leader shall calmly and politely ask the speaker to communicate civilly. If the behavior continues, the leader will terminate the meeting and reschedule. Further, an individual who disrupts or verbally threatens to disrupt any meeting or learning (classroom) process may be directed to leave school or school district property by the administrator.

Grade Changes

Parents/guardians are expected to respect the professional judgment of teachers regarding grades. Parents/guardians who have questions about particular assignments may, on occasion, inquire about them but they need to respect teachers' limited time constraints. In elementary school, conference opportunities are numerous. By the time students are in middle school, they should be taking increased responsibility for writing down assignments, understanding directions, knowing homework expectations, and approaching teachers with questions. Parents/guardians will best serve their children by coaching them to be their own advocates with teachers.

If a parent/guardian believes there has been a mistake in the scoring of an assignment or test, he or she may approach the teacher in the spirit of cooperative problem solving by presenting the relevant information and asking the teacher to review it. If a teacher feels unreasonably questioned by a parent/guardian, he or she will take the issue to a site administrator.

Exerting pressure on teachers to change trimester grades for any reason, including, but not limited to, qualifying to play on sports teams or participating in extracurricular activities, is not acceptable.

If a parent/guardian wishes to challenge a trimester grade, he or she may submit to the Superintendent or designee (site administrator) a written request explaining the reasons for the desired change. (Education Code 49070)

When a student grade is challenged, the teacher who gave the grade shall be given an opportunity to state orally, in writing, or both, the reasons for which the grade was given. Insofar as practical the teacher shall be included in all discussions related to any grade change. In the absence of clerical or mechanical error, fraud, bad faith or incompetence, the student's grade as determined by the teacher shall be final. (Education Code 49066)

California Education Code

44811. Disruption of classwork or extracurricular activities; punishment; exemptions

1. Any parent, guardian, or other person whose conduct in a place where a school employee is required to be in the course of his or her duties materially disrupts class work or extra curricular activities or involves substantial disorder is guilty of a misdemeanor.

2. A violation of subdivision (a) shall be punished as follows:

a. Upon the first conviction, by a fine of not less than \$500 and not more than \$1,000, or by imprisonment in a county jail for not more than one year, or by both the fine and imprisonment.

b. Upon a second conviction, by imprisonment in a county jail for a period of not less than 10 days, and not more than one year, or by both imprisonment and a fine not exceeding \$1,000. The defendant shall not be released on probation, or for any other basis until he or she has served not less than 10 days in a county jail.

c. Upon a third or subsequent conviction, by imprisonment in a county jail for a period of not less than 90 days, and not more than one year, or by both imprisonment and a fine not exceeding \$1,000. The defendant shall not be released on probation, or for any other basis until he or she has served not less than 90 days in a county jail..."

Furthermore, any individual who disrupts or threatens to disrupt school/office operation; threatens the health and safety of students or staff; willfully causes property damage, uses loud and/or offensive language which could provoke a violent reaction; or who has otherwise established a continued pattern of unauthorized entry on school district property, shall be directed to leave school or school district property promptly by the administrator or designee.

When an individual is directed to leave the property, the administrator or designee shall inform the person that he/she will be guilty of a misdemeanor in accordance with California Education Code 44811 and Penal Codes 415.5 and 626.7 if he/she reenters any district facility within 30 days after being directed to leave, or within seven days if the person is a parent/guardian of a student attending that school. If an individual refuses to leave upon request or returns before the applicable period of time, the administrator or designee may notify law enforcement officials.

Legal References: EDUCATION CODE 32210 - Willful Disruption of Public School or Meeting 56341 (h) - Non-adversarial Meetings PENAL CODE 415.5 - Disturbance of Peace of School 626.8- Disruptive Presence at Schools

Regulation MILL VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT Approved: January 19, 2005 Mill Valley, California

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING between the MILL VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT and the MILL VALLEY TEACHERS ASSOCIATION

The Mill Valley School District ("District") and the Mill Valley Teachers Association ("MVTA" or "Association") have reached a Tentative Agreement (TA) for the 2015/2016 and 2016/2017 school years. As a result of this TA, the Parties agree to the following one-time, non-precedent setting agreement:

- a. Unit members hired on or after July 1, 2012 who are enrolled in family coverage shall receive as follows: a one-time payment during the 2016-17 school year and a one-time payment during the 2017-18 school year.
- b. These unit members will receive the difference between the out-of-pocket family contribution for employees hired before July 1, 2012 and those hired after this date. These one-time payments shall not exceed the:
 - Actual cost of the plan in which the unit member is enrolled
 - The District's maximum medical contribution established for unit members hired before July 1, 2012 who are enrolled in Family coverage

The District and Association agree to convene a benefits committee in the Fall of 2016 that will be comprised of the District and MVTA negotiating teams. The committee's purpose is to research alternative health and welfare benefit programs that address:

- The district's concern about the sustainability and equity of rising family medical premiums.
- MVTA's concern about a two-tiered family medical premium program for members hired prior to July 1, 2012 and members hired on or after July 1, 2012.

FOR THE MILL VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT

FOR THE MILL VALLEY TEACHERS ASSOCIATION

Ву:	/S/	By:	/S/
Date:		Date:	